@Edelweiss

|deas create, values protect

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U45201TG2006PLC078157

Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Standalone Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (“the Standalone Financial Statement”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended, (Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Standalone state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its Standalone loss including Standalone Other Comprehensive loss, its
Standalone Cash Flows and the Standalone Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial

Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Standalone Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Standalone Financial

Statements.
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Key audit matters .
(a) Impairment of financial instrument

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter .

As described in note 52(C) of the Standalone Financial Statements

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide for impairment of
its financial assets as at the reporting date using the expected
credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL involves an estimation of
probability-weighted loss on financial instruments over their
life, considering reasonable and supportable information
about past events, current conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions which could impact the credit quality of
the Company's financial assets (loan portfolio).

In the process, a significant degree of judgement has been

applied by the management for:

e Staging of financial assets (i.e. classification in 'significant
increase in credit risk' ("SICR") and 'default' categories);

e Assigning internal rating grades to customers for which
external rating is not available;

e Calibrating external ratings-linked probability of defauit to
align with past default rates;

e Estimation of management overlay for macro-economic
factors correlation with the credit quality of the Company's
loan portfolio.

In view of the high degree of management’s judgement

involved in the estimation of ECL it is a key audit matter.

Our audit procedure included but were not limited to:

* Read and assessed the Company’s accounting policy
for impairment of financial assets and its compliance
with Ind AS 109;

* Tested the design and operating effectiveness of the
controls for staging of loans based on their past-due
status. Tested samples of performing (stage 1) loans
to assess whether any loss indicators were present
requiring them to be classified under stage 2 or 3.

e We performed procedures to test the inputs used in
the ECL computation, on a sample basis.

e Tested assumption used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic
factors.

* Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of
ECL provision performed by the Company in
spreadsheet.

{b) Information technology ('IT') systems and controls

The reliability and security of IT systems play a key role in the
business operations, financial accounting and reporting
process of the Company. Since large volume of transactions are
processed dally, the IT controls are required to ensure that
applications process data as expected and that changes are
made in an appropriate manner. Any gaps in the IT control
environment could result in a material misstatement of the
financial accounting and reporting records.

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and complexity of the
IT environment, the assessment of the general IT controls and
the application controls specific to the accounting and
preparation of the financial information is considered to be a
key audit matter.

We performed the following procedures for testing IT

general controls and for assessing the reliability of

electronic data processing, assisted by specialized IT
auditors:

¢ The aspects covered in the IT General Control audit
were (i) User Access Management (li} Program
Change Management (iil) Other related ITGCs - to
understand the design and test the operating
effectiveness of such controls;

¢ Assessed the changes that were made to the key
systems during the audit period and assessing
changes that have impact on financial reporting;

e Tested the periodic review of access rights. We
inspected requests of changes to systems for
appropriate approval and authorization.

e Performed tests of controls (including other
compensatory controls wherever applicable) on the
IT application controls and IT dependent manual
controls in the system.

¢ We have relied on SOC-2 type I report along with
the bridge letter provided by vendor for oracle
fusion to ensure compliance with audit trail,

e Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls, where deficlencies were
identified and, where necessary, extended the

__scope of our substantive audit procedures.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board’s Report and Annual report, but does not include the Standalone Financial
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board report and Annual report is expected to be made available

to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materiaily misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows and Changes in Equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards (Ind
AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended. This respansibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
ather irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasanable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
matertal misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to Standalone Financial Statement in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management,

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue asa
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including
the disclosures and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethica|
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31,2024
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because of the adverse consequences of doing so wouid
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for year ended March 31, 2023, were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those Standalone Financial Statement on May 22, 2023.
Accordingly, we do not express any opinion, as the case may be, on the figures reported in the Standalone Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), Issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” 3
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
Q/ knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

iil.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including the Standalone
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow and Standalone
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the boaks of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Standalone Financial Statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27,

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with

Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone Financial Statements — (Refer Note 41 to the Standalone Financial Statements);

The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 71 (A) to the Standalone Financial Statements, during the year no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the note 71 (B) to the Standalone Financial Statements, during the year no funds
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entitles identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

«
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vi.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.,

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with,

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024.

For Nangia & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants

FR

Partner

eet Singh Bedi

0. 002391C/ N50Q069

Membership No.: 601788

UDIN: 24601788BKFMUW9560

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 08, 2024

4" Foor, lconic Tower, Urmi Estate, 95 Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel {(West), Mumbai - 400013, india
p:+ 91 22 4474 3400

LLP Reglstration NO, AAJ-1379
Noida - New Dethi - Guragram - Mumbai - Bengalura - Chennai - Pune - Dehradun



NANGIA & CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

“ANNEXURE 1” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS RURAL & CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report]

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative
details and the situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the previous
years in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets,

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the

name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no proceedings initiated or
are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to companies or any other parties as follows:

{Amount in Rs. millions

Particulars | Guarantees [ Loans
| Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year .

Holding Company . - T
Subsldiaries - 1,990.60 T
Fellow subsidiaries 2,718.57 17,690.73 I
Others - 2,093.89 7
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date In respect of above cases T
Holding Company 621,93 - T
Subsidiaries* 3,491.69 12,002.74 T
Fellow subsidiaries* 2,564.73 82377 T
Others - 451 Q

*As disclosed in note 41.1 (b) to the standalone financial statements, charge created on immovable
propertles of the Company amounting to Rs.578.70 million.
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(b) During the year the investments made, guarantee provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans, and guarantees to
Companies, or any other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(c) In respect of loans granted to companies, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular except in the following

cases.
Name of the Entity | Amount Due date Extent of delay Remarks, if any
{in Rs. million) {in days)
Various partles Rs. 1,631 Varlous > 1 days Fully provided (Provision
made In earlier years)

(d) The following amounts are overdue for more than ninety days from Companies or any other
parties to whom loan has been granted, and reasonable steps have been taken by the Company
for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

Name of the Entity | Amount Due date Extent of delay Remarks, if any
{In Rs. million) {In days)

Fully provided (Provision
made in earlier years)

Various parties Rs. 1,631 Various > 90 days

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, or any other parties
which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted
to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms
or period of repayment to (companies, or any other parties). Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii){f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{ivy The Company has not advanced loans to directors / to a Company in which the director is
interested to which provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 apply and hence not
commented upon. The Company has made investments / given loans / guarantees which is in
compliance to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

(v}  The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi)  The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products / services of the Company. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. The provision relating
to duty of customs, duty of excise, and sales tax are not applicable to Company. The extent of the
arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2024, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable are as follows:

Ve

4" Floor, Iconic Tower, Urmi Estate, 95 Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel (West), Mumbal - 400013, india
p:+91 224474 3400

LLP Registration NO. AAJ)-1379
Noida - New Delhi - Gurugram - Mumbai - Benpalure - Chennai - Pune — Dehradun




NANGIA & CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax AY. 2015-16
1961
Income Tax Act, | income Tax 0.79 0.16 AY. 2017-18 The Commissioner of
1961 Income Tax (Appeals),
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 6.09 0.01 AY. 2018-19
1961
Madhya Pradesh | Value Added | 2.74 0.59 F.Y.2012-13 Assistant
Value Added Tax | Tax Commissioner
Uttar  Pradesh | Value Added | 65.16 11.03 F.Y. 2015-16 Commercial Tax
Value Added Tax | Tax Tribunal
Gujarat  Value | Value Added | 53.68 6.3 F.Y. 2016-17 loint  Commissioner
Added Tax Tax (Appeals)
Gujarat  Value | Value Added | 7.04 0.75 F.Y.2017-18 Deputy Commissioner
Added Tax Tax
Gujarat Goods | Goods and | 24.41 1.82 F.Y.2018-19
and Service Tax, | Service Tax
2017
Gujarat Goods | Goods and | 27.46 212 F.Y.2019-20
and Service Tax, | Service Tax
2017
Maharashtra Goods and | 1.68 0.08 F.Y. 2018-19
Goods and | Service Tax
Service Tax, 2017
Rajasthan Goods | Goods and | 5.06 NII F.Y.2017-18 Commissioner of
and Service Tax, | Service Tax Appeals
2017
Maharashtra Goods and | 2.00 Nil F.Y. 2019-20
Goods and | Service Tax
Service Tax, 2017 -
Maharashtra Goods and | 12.59 Nil F.Y. 2019-20
Goods and | Service Tax
Service Tax, 2017 | o - 1 ]
Rajasthan Goods | Goods and | 2.34 Ni) F.Y.2017-18
and Service Tax, | Service Tax
P ]

Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding for more than Six Months:

| Date  of
Payment

 Perlod to | Due Date Remarks
which amount
relates
2022-2023 and

2023-2024

the | Nature of | Amount
Dues (InRs.
million)

Name of

Statute

Due to
Technical
reason with
PF
department,

Various due 26-Apr-24

dates

Provident
Fund

The Employees
Provident Funds
and Miscellaneous
Provision Act,
1952

(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
cess, and other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Amount the
{Rs. In

millions)

 Nature of

dues

Demand Paid
under ptptest
{Rs. In millions)

Perlod to which | Forum where
the 'amdynt dispute is Pending
relates ' .

Name  of the
statute
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiil)

g

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not used funds raised on short term basis for long-term purposes,

(e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associate or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) As represented to us by the management, No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under Sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by a secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT ~ 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistleblower complaints recelved by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clauses 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b), and 3{xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are In compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii}

(xviii)

(xix)

{xx)

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

{b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence the requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable

to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order s
not applicable to the Company.

{d) The Group has one Core Investment Company as part of the Group.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 855.48 million in the current year and Rs.
1,090.4 million in the immediately preceding financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of statutory auditor during the year, and accordingly requirement
to report on ciause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. The previous auditor has
completed their term during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 61 to the standalone financial statements, the
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date.

We, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

{a) There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in
Schedule Vil of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub-section 5 of
Section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 51 to the standalone financial

statements.
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(b) There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a special account in
compliance of provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been
disclosed in note 51 to the standalone financial statements.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Membership No.: 601788
UDIN: 24601788BKFMUW9560

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 08, 2024
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“ANNEXURE 2” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS RURAL 8 CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED.

[Referred to in paragraph 2 (f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Edelweiss Rural & Carporate Services
Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

To the Members of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

We have audited the internal financiat controls over financial reporting with reference to Standalone
Financial Statement of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31,

2024, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financiat controls
based on internal control over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statement criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
erderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial infarmation, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financiai contrels over financial
reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards an Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to Standalone Financial Statement were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statement and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls aver financial reporting with reference
to Standalone Financial Statement included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls gver
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal contral based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with
reference to Standalone Financial Statement.

Meaning of Internal Financlial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Financial
Statement is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to Standalone Financial Statement includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial

Statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
Standalone Financial Statement, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Standalone
Financial Statement to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contro} over financial
reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statement may become inadequate because of changes
In conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
Standalone Financial Statement were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024 based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRMN No. 002391C/N590069

Membership No.: 601788
UDIN: 24601788BKFMUW9560

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 08, 2024
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
CIN : U45201TG2006PLCO78157

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

Note As at As at
Particulars No 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment { including Right of use assets) 2A& 28 1,769.78 2,094.32
{b) Capital work in progress 2E 5.71 .
{c) Investment property 2C 1,806.74 1,677.69
(d) Other Intangible assets 20 6.13 9.52
{e} Intangible assets under development 2F 5.01 -
(f} Financial assets
{I) Investments 3 9,015.27 12,586.26
(ii} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 476.15 378.39
{iii) Loans 5 65.59 61.33
{iv) Other financial assets 6 122.80 33.47
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 7 869.59 887.25
(h) Current tax assets (net) 8 1,117.56 1,559.07
{i) Other non-current assets 9 18.83 18.78
Total non-current assets 15,279.16 19,306.08
Current assets
{a) Financial Assets
{i) Investments 10 1,267.35 6,781.75
{ii) Trade receivables 11 121.88 352,40
{iii} Cash and cash equivalents 12 219.56 75.92
(iv) Bank balances other than {iii) above 13 - 47.30
{v} Loans 14 10,165.42 236.33
{vi) Other financial assets 15 39.67 212
{b) Other current assets 16 192.30 217.66
Total current assets 12,006.18 7,713.48
TOTAL ASSETS 27,285.34 27,019.56
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity share capital 17 665.80 465.35
{b} Instruments entirely equity in nature 17 12,513.60 9,013.60
{c) Other equity 18 {6,180.55) (5,153.39)
Total Equity 6,998.85 4,325.56
Non-current liabilitles
{a) Financial Liabilitles
(1) Borrowings 19 11,266.64 14,144,97
{li) Other financial Habilities 20 98.94 67.96
{ill)Lease llabilities 45 1.09 1.14
{b) Provisions 21 6.59 5,29
. Total ngn-current ltabilities 11,373.26 14,219.36
Current liabilitles
{a) Finatial liabilities
(i) B&rrowings 22 7,986.74 7,954.14
{li} Trade payables 23
J‘,"’ . Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises
i Total outs(anfﬂng dues to credlitors other than Micro enterprises and 743.84 220.84
Small enterprises
{lii) Other financlal liabllitles 24 158.56 266.15
{b) Other current liabilities 25 23.93 28,75
{c) Provisions 26 0.16 a.76
Total current liabilitles 8,913.23 8,474.64
Totat llabilities 20,286.49 22,694.00
TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES 27,285.34 27,019,56
The accompanyling notes are an integral part of the standalone financial 1t077
statements.
As per our report of even date attached,
For Nangia & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

| Firm Reglstration Numger: 002391C/ N500069

=N

Ravindra Dhobale ~NIkhil Joharl
Executive Director & CFO Director
DIN No.:05147051 DIN No..01960539

(3

Christina'Dsouz
Campany Secretgry
MambershiprNo: 18781

Maembership No: 601788

n.

Mumbal
May 08, 2024

Mumbai
May 08, 2024




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

CIN : U45201TG2006PL.CO78157

Standalone Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from operations
Fee and commission income 27 556.84 783.34
Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 28 {63.02) (43.85)
Interest income 29 1,308.54 1,778.59
Sale of commodities 816.55 4,729.50
Other operating revenue 30 281.82 355.42
Total Revenue from operations 2,900.73 7,603.00
Other income 31 208.64 409.17
Total Revenue 3,109.37 8,012.17
Expenses
Purchases of commodities 816.33 4,726.53
Impairment on financial instruments 32 (50.97) 198.83
Employee benefits expense 33 438.90 431.67
Finance costs 34 2,119.33 3,254.23
Depreciation and amortisation 2 204.20 463.60
Other expenses 35 590.29 690.39
Total expenses 4,118.08 9,765.25
Profit / (Loss) before tax (1,008.71) (1,753.08)
Tax expenses
{1} Current tax - -
(2) Deferred tax (net} 17.66 215.46
Profit / (Loss) after tax for the year {1,026.37) {1,968.54)
Other Comprehensive Income / {Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans (12.01) (4.19)
Deferred Tax Benefit on above - 1.46
Total Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year {12.02 (2.73)
Total Comprehensive Income / {Loss) for the year (1,038.38) (1,971.27)
Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each):
(1) Basic 43 (11.87) (27.23)
(2) Diluted (11.87) (27.23)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial
statements. 1to 77

As per our report of even date attached.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ation NumbdfOOBSlC/ N500069

-
Bt Singh Bedi
Partner

Membership No: 601788

Mumbal
May 08, 2024

Ravindra Dhobale
Executive Director &
DIN No.:05147051

!
@—S 3
.
Christina Dsouz
Company Secrglary

For and on bebhalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

AN

Membership No: 18781

Mumbai
May 08, 2024

DIN No.:01960539




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

CIN : U45201TG2006PLC078157

Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Currency : Indian rupees in mitlions)

A Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for
Impairment on financial instruments (net)
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Profit / {loss) on sale of fixed assets (net)
Provision for employee benefits
Profit/ (Loss) on sale of current and non-current investments
Fair valuation of non-current investments
Finance costs

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Changes in working capital

(Increase) / Decrease In trade receivables

(Increase}/ Decrease in loans and advances

{Increase) / Decrease in other assets

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable

increase / {Decrease) in liabilities and provisions

Cash (used in) / generated from operations

Taxes refund/ (paid) (net)

Net cash generated / (used in) from operating activities - A

B Cash tlow from investing activities

(Purchase) / sale of fixed assets {net) (including capital work-in progress)
Purchase current and non-current investments

Sale cutrent and non-current investments

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities - B

Cc Cash flow from financing activitles

(Repayment of} / Proceeds from loans {net) (Refer note 1)
Proceeds from / (Redemption of ) subordinated liabllities
Issue of Equity share capital

(Redemption) / Issue of commerctal paper (net)

Principal repayment of leases

Interest paid

Net cash (used In) / generated from financing actlvitles - C

Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

For the year ended For the year ended
31March 2024 31 March 2023
{1,008.71) (1,753.08)
(50.97) (49.15)
204.20 463.60
0.12 8.47
0.02 3.38
{118.40) (111.73)
(241.15) 356.25
2,119.33 3,248.02
904.44 2,165.76
194.78 394.79
(9,933.46) 10,637.85
(152.03) (8.54)
522.37 120.26
(84.69) (51.02)
(8,548.59) 13,259.10
441.51 (14.49)
(8,107.08) 13,244.61
(16.15) (19.71)
(2,269.27) (568.92)
11,800.80 3,539.92
9,515.38 2,951.29
(4,832.73) (8,140.35)
{377.00) (1,787.40)
3,700.45 0.00
2,400.00 (2,809.25)
(0.05) (1.89)
(2,155.33} {3,498.88)
(1,264.66) (16,237.77)
143.64 (41.87)
75.92 117,79
219.56 75.92




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in miltions)

Note:
Bank receipt and Bank payments for transaction with group companies in which turnover is quick, the amount are large, and the maturities are short are presented on net

basis.
Above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under "Indirect Method" as set outin indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 "Statement of Cash Flows “ specified under

Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note:
3 Component of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
in current accounts 219.56 75.92
219.56 75.92
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 1077
As per our report of even date attached.
For Nangia & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 002391C/ N500069
Vad
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spreet Singh Bed! Ravindra Dhobale NIk
Partner Executive Director & CFO Director -
Membership No: 601788 DIN No.:05147051 DIN No.:01960539
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Christina Dsouga
Company Seefetary
Membership No: 18781

Mumbai
May 08, 2024
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May 08, 2024




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
CIN : U452017TG2006PLCO78157

dal of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Currency : indian rupees in millions)

A} Equity share capital

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 465.35 465.35
Changes in equity share capital during the year 200.45 -
Balance at the end of the year 665.80 465.35
{8} instruments entirely equity in nature
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 9,013.60 9,013.60
Changes in equity share capital during the year 3,500.00 -
Balance at the end of the year 12,513.60 9,013.60

Refer Note 17 for other details

{C} Other Equity
Other

Reserves and Surplus Comprehensive
Income Total

Capital Redemption Securities Premium Debenture redemption N
ESOP reserve 8
Reserve Account reserve Reserve

Balance as at 01 April 2022 402.85 30.00 5,564.51 62.41 1,202.05 (11,363.63) 915.44 (3,186.37)
- . 3 (1,968.54) . {1,968.54)
; (2.73) . (2.73)

{1,971.27} {1,971.27)

Capital Reserve

Profit or loss -

Other comprehensive income - -
Total Comprehensive income for the . .

year
Reversal of ESOP/SAR on canceliation - - -

427 4.27
(Iagses post vesting g
Reversal to retained earning - - - 45,40 {45.40} N
Balance at 31 March 2023 402.85 30.00 5,564.51 62.41 1,202.05 (13,285.25) 870.04 (5,153.39)
Peofit or {loss) (1,026.37) . (1,026.37)

Other comprehensive income - - - - . {12.01) - {12.01)
Total Comprehensive income for the - -

year
Reversal of ESOP/SAR on cancellation - . -

11.22 11.22
[1apses post vesting .
Reversal to retain earning - 52.16 {52.16}
Revaluation of property, plant & . - - : -

equipment
Balance at 31 March 2024 402.85 30.00 5,564.51 62.41 1,202.05 (14,260.26) 817.88 {6,180.55)

(1,038.38} {1,038.38)

Refer Note 18 for other details
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Nangla & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Edelwaeiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

AN

Ravindra Dhobale Nikhll johari
Executive Director & CFO Director
DIN No.:05147051 DIN No.:01960539

}x A
Christina Dsouza

Company Secretgry
Membership No: 18781

Chartered Accountants
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1.1 Corporate information

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited (‘the Company’) having Corporate Identity
Number: U45201TG2006PLC078157 was incorporated on October 17, 2006 in the State of
Maharashtra. The Company is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The Company has its
registered office at MB Towers, Plot no. 5, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana, India, 500034.
The Company owns property which earns rental income and holds the technology shared
service centre which provides services to group companies. The Company deals in trading of
commodity. The Company also has investment in group companies.

Material Accounting Policy

1.2 Statement of Compliance and Basis of preparation and presentation of standalone financial
statements

The Company’s standalone financial statements has been prepared and presented in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {(as amended from time to time) and in compliance with
the Division |l of the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company’s standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for certain financial instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) instruments, derivative financial instruments, other
financial assets held for trading and certain property, plant and equipment which have been
measured at fair value. The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees
(INR) in millions, except when otherwise indicated.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the company’s
normal operating cycle. The Company has considered an operating cycle of 12 months.

1.3 Use of estimates

- The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported revenue and
expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from the estimates.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1.4 Revenue recognition

e  Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
recognized when the company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when the
customer obtains control of that asset. When a performance obligation is satisfied, the
Company recognizes as revenue the amount of the transaction price (excluding estimates
of variable consideration) that is allocated to that performance obligation. The Company
applies the five-step approach for recognition of revenue:

(i) Identification of contract(s) with custqmers;

(ii) Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;

(iii) Determination of transaction price;

(iv) Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and
(v) Recognition of revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied

¢ Fee income including advisory fees is accounted over the period as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits, as the services are rendered.

o  Business support services are accounted on accrual basis in accordance with the terms
and contracts entered into between the company and the counterparty.

e  Profit / loss on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis.
e Commodities sales are accounted as per terms of agreement with the parties.

e [nterest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial
instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. The EIR is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR,

e Agency commission/procurement income is recorded in pursuant to the terms and
conditions mentioned in scope of work /agreement.

e Revenue from Investment management servicesis recognised over the tenure in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the investment management agreement

with group companies.
1.5 Financial Instruments

Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially
recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades; purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established
by regulation or convention in the market place. The Company recognises borrowings when

funds are received.
Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

\\immediately in profit or loss.

g




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair
value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for
which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price
and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in statement of profit and loss when the
inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

e  Amortised cost

e Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised
cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

» if those sales are infrequent (even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both
individually and in aggregate (even if frequent).

e if such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale
approximate the collection of the remaining contractual cashflow.

* selling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

* the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Amortized cost and Effective interest rate (EIR)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit
losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For
purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective inter
rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected ‘
losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.
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The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured
at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets held for trading

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased or
issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a
recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held for trading assets and liabilities are recorded
and measured in the balance sheet at fair value.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either
designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. These include debt securities, equity instruments,
mutual fund units, nifty linked debentures etc.

Investment in equity instruments

The Company measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss except, for
Investment in subsidiaries and associates are recognised at cost, subject to impairment if any
at the end of each reporting period. Cost of investment represents amount paid for acquisition
of the investment. .

Investment in mutual funds and preference Shares

The Company subsequently measures all investments in mutual fund and preference shares at
fair value through profit or loss as these financial assets do not pass the contractual cash flow
test as required by Ind AS- 109- Financial Instruments, for being designated at amortised cost
or FVTOCI, hence classified at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured
at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Company has issued certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to
performance of specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a
component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at a reporting date. The resultant
‘net unrealised loss or gain’ on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. The debt component of such debentures is measured at
amortised cost using yield to maturity basis.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the company entity a
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Repurchase of the company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the company's own equity instruments.

Redeemable preference shares

Redeemable preference shares issued are classified as financial liabilities and are measured at
fair value at inception and at amortised cost subsequently.

Where the transaction price for the preference shares issued differs from the fair value, the
difference is recognized in profit or loss unless the difference is a deemed capital contribution
from the company, in which case, the said difference is recognized in equity.

In accounting for these preference shares at amortised cost subsequent to initial recognition,
interest expense based on the effective interest rate is recognized in profit or loss. This
effective interest rate is based on the initial measurement of the preference shares (fair value)
and the maturity amount. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss
unless the difference is due to a transaction with a related party, in which case, the same is
recognized as a deemed distribution or return of deemed capital contribution, as the case may

be.
Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition,
apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or
terminates a business line.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

¢ The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to
exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing financial liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference
between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial
assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts, in
this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to

impairment.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables and lease receivables. The application of simplified approach does not
require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The
Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its
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For all other financial instruments, the company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition instead of an evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the
reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn
down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn
down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the company’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant
forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the company seeks to use collateral, where
possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of
credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit
enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on
the balance sheet.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held
as collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are
valued using models.

Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the company has
no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts,
interest rate swaps and forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks,
interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is

negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Commodity contracts that are entered into apg™ -
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accordance with the company’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements are held at
cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OC|
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as
basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company
determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the
assets and how these are managed.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation js
required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty),
funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the

Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order to
show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

* Level 1 financial instruments -Those where the inputs used in the valuation are
unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that t
Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers marketg/%
active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volum
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liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable
price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

* Level 2 financial instruments-Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are
significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over
the entire period of the instrument’s life.

* Level 3 financial instruments ~Those that include one or more unobservable input that is
significant to the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques
including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with
its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that
estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual
assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised

financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument
basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the

reporting period.

1.6 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the
equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

1.7 Foreign currency transactions

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

1.8 Retirement and other employee benefit

$

(78

Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which
is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods,
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets,
if any, is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined
based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liabili
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or cre
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises
the charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

1.9 Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are granted by the ultimate parent
company. These are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date. These includes Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) where the right to receive the
difference between the SAR price and the market price of equity shares of the ultimate parent
company on the date of exercise, either by way of cash or issuance of equity shares of the
ultimate parent company, is at the discretion of the ultimate parent company. These are
classified as equity settled share based transaction.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the company’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting
period, the company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the ‘ESOP reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments
over the vesting period, the company treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each
instalment has a different vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.

1.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected
useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as
appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the
carrying amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above,
Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is
provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or
put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to the

date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has evaluated
the useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of assets S:Sfr:f :;g
Building (Other than Factory Building) o 60 years
)\‘)\1&:(‘; Plant and equipments ve
S b a Furniture and fittings

Vehicles

e \6\\\-{“
iy e
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Office equipments 5 years
Computers - Servers and networks 6 years
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years
Solar Power Plant 15 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets or the period of lease, whichever is shorter.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying
amount of those components which have been separately recognised as assets is
derecognised at the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or

loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Land and buildings are subsequently shown at fair value based on periodic valuations by
external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Valuations will be
carried out on a regular basis, unless the management consider it appropriate to have an
earlier revaluation, such that the carrying amount of property does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting period. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Subsequent measurement of land and building under revaluation model

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to
other comprehensive income and shown as a revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity. An
exception is a gain on revaluation that reverses a revaluation decrease (impairment) on the
same asset previously recognised as an expense. Decreases that offset previous increases of
the same asset are charged in other comprehensive income and debited against the
revaluation reserve directly in equity; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Fach
year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset
charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is transferred from
the revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Right-of-use assets are presented together with property and equipment in the statement of
financial position — refer to the accounting policy 1.16. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying
amount of those components which have been separately recognised as assets is
derecognised at the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or

joss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if approp
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years based on its estimated
useful life.

Intangible assets under development are recorded at the consideration paid for the
acquisition of such assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the
company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the
asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer
exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable
amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

1.12 Inventories

Inventories in the form of commodities are valued at weighted average cost or net realisable
value, whichever is lower.

1.13 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability.

Contingent Liability

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there
is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company. Claims against the company, where the possibility of any
outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.
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1.14 Income tax expenses

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary
difference, unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient
taxable temporary differences which are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of
deductible temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or
back. When this is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable

that:

* the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible
temporary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

* tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate
periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the end of the reporting
periad, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit

MAT credit asset is recognized where there is convincing evidence that the asset can be
realized in future. MAT credit assets are reviewed as at the balance sheet date and written
down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably certain to be realised.

1.15 Operating leases
Company as a lessee

The Company makes an assessment of lease at the time of inception of a contract and if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration, same is recognised as Lease liability. The Company applies a single recognitio
and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-v
assets, The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use a§s
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Measurement of Right of use assets

The Company recognises ‘Right-of-Use’ assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). The cost of ‘Right-of-Use’ assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

Subsequently ‘Right-of-Use’ assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation;
and impairment losses; and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term or the estimated useful lives
of the assets whichever is short.

Lease Liabilities

At the initial recognition, the Company measures lease liabilities at present value of all lease
payments discounted, using the Company’s incremental cost of borrowing, to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. ‘

Subsequently, the lease liability is

- increased to reflect the accretion of interest; and

- reduced for the lease payments made and

- remeasured to reflect any change in the lease term, change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments), or change in option to purchase the underlying asset.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance
lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

1.16 Investment property

Properties, including those under construction, held to earn rentals and/or capital
appreciation are classified as investment property and are measured and reported at cost,
including transaction costs.

Depreciation is recognised using written down method so as to write off the cost of the
investment property less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule I to
the Companies Act, 2013 or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by
technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at
each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future benefits
embodied in the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also
reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of use
life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis.
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An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the same period.

1.17 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the company's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the
management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the
management has made in the process of applying the company's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the company takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

Determining lease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination option

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain, whether or not, to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew or to terminate {e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset),

1.18 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the ne
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circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occu

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is
required in establishing fair values.

Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are outputs of models with a number of
underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies.
Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

*  Probability of default (PD) calculation includes historical data, assumptions and
expectations of future conditions.

*  The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit
loss and the qualitative assessment.

*  The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
*  Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

. Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic

*  Inputs, such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs,
Exposure at default {(EAD) and loss given default (LGD)

*  Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings,
to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models
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Effective interest rate method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of characteristics of the product life cycle,

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected
behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes fee income/expense that
are integral parts of the instrument.

Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together

with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses with respect to
certain subsidiaries where the Company believes that the said deferred tax assets shall be
recoverable based on the estimated future taxable income which in turn is based on approved
business plans and budgets. The losses are allowed to be carried forward to the years in which
the Company expects that there will be sufficient taxable profits to offset these losses.
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the

Aal.

financial for the year ended 31 March 2024 {continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

2(g)

Capital work in progress

Description of Assets Gross Black

As at April 01, 2023 Additions Capitall As at March 31, 2024
Capital work In progress - 571 5.71
Total - 5.71 - 5.71
Description of Assets Gross Block

As at April 01, 2022 Additions Capitalizati As at March 31, 2023

Capital work In progress -

Yotal - -

Capital work in progress ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Capital work In progress Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in Progress 5.71 - - - 571
Total 5.71 - - 5.71
As at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Totat

Capital work in progress
P Prog Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years

Projects in Progress - - -

More than 3 years

Projects temporarily suspended -

Total - - -

There are no Capital work in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original ptan.
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Notes to the

dalone financial for the year ended 31 March 2024 {continued)

{Currency : indian rupees in millions)

2(F)

Intangible assets under development

Gross Block
Description of Assets -
As at April 01, 2023 Additions : Cap As at March 31, 2024
Intangible assets under development - Software - 5.01 5.01
Total - 5.01 5.01
Description of Assets Gross Black .
As at Aprll 01, 2022 Additions Cap As at March 31, 2023

Intangible assets under development - Software -

Total N

intangible assets under development ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024

Amount in Intangible assets under d

t for a period of

Intangible assets under develop - Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in Progress 5.01 - < 501
Projects temporarily suspended - .
Total 5.01 - 5.01
As at March 31, 2023
Amoun ibl d lopment for a
intanglble assets under develop t in intangible assets under developme perlod of Total
More than 3 years

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

Projects in Progress -

Projects temporarily suspended -

Total

There are no Intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Face Face
value Quantity Amount value Quantity Amount
3 Non-current investments

Unquoted Investments
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries (fully paid up)

Nido Home Finance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Housing

Finance Limited) 10 3,83,00,000 2,829.00 10 3,83,00,000 2,829.00

Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 10 2,99,99,994 48.86 10 2,89,99,994 38.86

Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 10 10,05,49,994 1,000.10 16 10,05,49,994 1,000.10

Allium Finance Private Limited 10 50,34,668 926.27 10 9,34,339 67.35
Investments in equity instruments of other companies (fully paid up)

Inditrade Business Consultants Limited 10 10,000 0.10 10 10,000 0.10
Non cumulative Compulsorily convertible redeemable preference share of
subsidiary

Allium Finance Private Limited - - - 10 41,00,329 858.92
Compulsorily convertible Debentures of Subsidi

0.01 % Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 10 57,50,00,000 5,750.00 10 57,50,00,000 5,750.42
Investment in Alternative Investment Fund

india Credit investment Fund Il - - - 10,000 2,61,179 2,611.79

India Credit Investment Fund | - - - 10,000 1,47,909 1,055.49
Carrying Value of Investment 10,554.33 14,212.03
Less : Impairment Allowance (1,539.06) (1,625.77}

Total 9,015.27 T T12586.26
. ey e d hd
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
{Currency. Indian rupees in millions)

4 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Deposits with banks
- Fixed deposits with banks
Earmarked balances with bank in current account (unpaid dividends)

(refer note 42 on Encumbrances on fixed deposits )
S Non Current - Loans
Secured*

Receivables from financing business to others
Provision for expected credit loss on loans

Unsecured

Loans and advances to related parties
Provision for expected credit loss on loans

Intercorporate deposits to others
Accrued interest on Intercorporate deposits
Impairment on intercorporate deposits

* Secured against securities

6 Other financial assets

Rent and other deposits
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind for value to be received
Deposits placed with /for exchange /depositories

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
475.86 376.14
0.29 2.25
476.15 378.39
561.59 583.34
(561.59) (532.82)

- 50.52
6,000.32 5,945.54
(5,934.73) (5,934.73)
65.59 10.81
1,055.62 1,055.62
14.07 14.07
{(1,069.69) (1,069.69)
65.59 61.33
21.36 24.60

98.08 .

3.36 8.87
122.80 33.47
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
7 Deferred tax assets {net)
Deferred tax assets
Loans
Provision for standard assets 570.04 559.98
Provision for non-performing and doubtful advances 13435 126.76
Leases 0.40 0.40
Unused tax credit
MAT credit entitlement 581.92 581.92
Unused tax losses
Accumulated Losses 203.41 203.41
Gratuity & other Employee Benefits 3.07 2.30
Deferred tax assets {(A) 1,493.19 1,474.77
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation (including intangibles) 553.51 508.74
Investments and other financial instruments
Fair valuation gain of investments 1.89 1.44
Borrowings
Effective interest rate on borrowings 36.11 47.85
Others 32.09 29.49
Deferred tax liabilities (B) 623.60 587.52

Deferred tax assets {net) (A-B) 869.59 887.25
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

(Currency : indian rupees in millions)
As at

31 March 2024

8 Current tax assets {net)

As at
31 March 2023

Advance income taxes 1,117.56 1,559.07
(net of provision for income tax of Rs.2,073.33 millions (Previous year: Rs.
2,073.33 millions))
1,117.56 1,559.07
9 Other non-current assets
Other deposits 18.83 18.78
18.83 18.78
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Face value Quantity Amount Face value Quantity Amount
10 Current investments

Unquoted
Investments in partnership firm - others

Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP - - 312 - - 3.16
Compulsorily convertible Debentures of related party

Ecap Equities Limited - - - 1,000 6,60,000 6,600.59
Unsecured, quoted
Non Convertible Debentures of related parties

Ecap Equities Limited 1,00,000 8,574 1,211.97 1,00,000 384 123.76

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 1,000 10,307 1033 1,000 10,307 10.49

Edel Finance Company Limited 10,00,000 24 26.23 10,00,000 24 26.72
Non Convertible Debentures - others

Others 1,000 16,340 15.70 1,000 19,140 17.02
Total 1,267.35 6,781.75
(i) Investments held outside India - .
{ii) Investments held in India 1,267.35 6,781.75
Total 1,267.35 6,781.75
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Currency: indian rupees in millions)

11

Trade receivables

Unsecured
Trade Receivables - considered good
Trade Receivables - Credit impaired

Less : Allowance for expected credit losses

Trade Receivables ageing schedule

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

121.88 352.40
384.46 362.75
506.34 715.15
384.46 362.75
121.88 352.40

As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 & months -1 year 12 years 2-3years More than 3 Total

months years

i} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 121.88 - - - - 121.88
ii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 7.79 0.11 - - 376.56 384.46
Gross Recelvables (A) 129.67 0.11 - - 376.56 506.34
i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good (2.81) - - - - (2.81)
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired (4.98) {0.11) - - (376.56) (381.65)
Total ECL Provision on receivables (B) (7.79) (0.11) - M (376.56) (384.46)
Total receivables net of provision = (A)-(B) 121.88 - M - - 121.88
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

months years

i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 352.40 - - - - 352.40
il} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 1.52 - 4.86 1231 344.06 362.75
Gross Recelvables (A} 353.92 - 4.86 12.31 344.06 715.15
i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good - M . - - 0.00
1i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired (1.52) (4.86) {12.31) (344.06) (362.75)
Total ECL Provision on receivables (B} (1.52) - (4.86) (12.31) (344.06) (362.75)
Total receivables net of provision = (A)-(B) 352.40 - M - - 352.40




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

AS at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
12 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
-in current accounts 219.56 75.92
219.56 75.92
13 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits - 47.30
N 47.30

(Refer note 42 on Encumbrances on fixed deposits )
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

14

15

16

Loans

Unsecured

Loans and advances to related parties
Accrued interest on loans
Provision for expected credit loss on loans

Loans and advances to employees

Other financial assets

Receivable from exchange / clearing house {net)

Margin placed with broker

Corporate Guarantee Fees Receivabie

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind for value to be received

Other current assets

{Unsecured Considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Input tax credit

Advance to employees and vendors

Prepaid expenses

Contribution to gratuity fund

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
10,060.32 220.00
101.63 3.28
(1.04) -
10,160.91 223.28
4.51 13.05
10,165.42 236.33
0.52 0.52
- 0.07
11.06 .
28.09 1.52
39.67 2.12
140.39 163.27
3.68 6.01
25.67 19.67
22.56 28.71
192.30 217.66
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Notes to the standaione financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

Asat
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2024

17 Share capitai

Authorised:

7,25,00,000 (Previous year: 4,75,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 725.00 475.00

4,20,00,000 {Previous year: 6,70,00,000} preference shares of Rs. 10 each 420.00 670.00
1,145.00 1,145.00

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up:

(a) Equity Shares

6,65,80,367 (Previous year: 4,65,35,367) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 665.80 465.35

665.80 465.35

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has re-organised the Authorised Share Capital of the Company by canceling 2,50,00,000 Preference Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each,
forming part of the existing un-issued Authorised Preference Share Capital of the Company and simultaneously creating 2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each.

Reconcillation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 46,535,367 465.35 46,535,367 465.35
Issued during the year 20,045,000 200.45 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 66,580,367 665.80 46,535,367 465.35
Eguity shares held by holding Company
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Percentage Percentage
Number of shares Shareholding Number of shares Shareholding
Equity shares
Edel Finance company Limited * 66,580,367 100.00% 46,535,367 100.00%
Details of equity shares In the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Percentage Percentage
Number of shares harehold Number of shares Shareholdi
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
66,580,367 100.00% 46,535,367 100.00%

Edel Finance company Limited

d to equity shares:

Rights, pi and

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share hels
the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all g

shares held by the shareholders.
{b) Instruments entirely equity in nature

@ Shares ('CCPS'}

{i) C y Convertible

13,59,955 CCPS (Previous year 13,59,955) - 0.01% Compulsory Convertible

i | unts. The

d. In the event of liquidation of the Company,

will be in proportion to the number of equity

Preference Shares {“CCPS") of face value of Rs. 10/- along with premium of Rs. 357.66 Per Share 13.60 13.60
{ll) Compulsorily Convertible Deb {'cCDs')
12,500,000 CCDs {Previous year 90,00,000} of the face value of Rs, 1,000/- each 12,500.00 9,000.00

12,513.60 9,013.60
{1} Compulsory Convertible Preferance Shares {'CCPS')

of shares ding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

CCPS of Rs. 10 ench fully pald
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 1,359,955 13.60 1,359,955 13.60
Issued during the year . - B B
Oulstanding at the end of the year 1,359,955 13,60 1,359,955 13.60

Shares held by holding Company

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Parcantage

Number of shares Shareholding

Percentage

Number of shares Shareholding

Equity shares
Edal Finance company Limited *

Detalis of shares In the Company held by each shareholdar holding more than § parcent shares:

1,359,955 100.00%

1,359,95%% 100.00%

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Percontage

Number of shares Sharaholding

Percantage

Numbar of shares Shareholding

CCPS of Rs 10 each fully pald up
Fdel Finance company Limited

Terms of Compulsory Conventible Preference Shares {"CCPS")

1,359,955 100.00%

LIS 9%% 100.0U%

Non-cumulative Dividend of 0.01% par annum on the face value of the CCPS shall ba pait to the CCPS holders, The CCPS will sutomatically o convertible Into equity shares at the snd of 10 years
from the date of allotment Le. March 30,2021, 1 CCPS will be Convarted (nto 1 Equity Shara. 13,5%9,9%% equity shares will ba issaed on conversion
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{ii) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures ('CCDs'}
Reconclliation of CCDs ding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
CCDs of Rs. 1,000 each fully paid
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 90,00,000 9,000.00 90,00,000 9,000.00
Issued during the year 35,00,000 3,500.00 - .
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,25,00,000 12,500.00 90,00,000 9,000.00
Shares held by holding Company
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Percentage Percentage
Number of shares Shareholding Number of shares Shareholding
Equity shares
£del Finance company Limited 1,25,00,000 100.00% $0,00,000 100.00%
Detalls of shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Percentage Percentage
Number of shares Shareholding Number of shares Shareholding
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully pald up
Edel Finance company Limited 1,25,00,000 100.00% 90,00,000 160.00%

Terms of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures {the "Debenture”/”CCDs"}

CCDs carrying coupon of 0.01% on the face value of the CCDs shall be paid to the CCD holders. The CCDs will be convertible into equity shares within period not exceeding 10 years from the date
of allotment i.e. March 26,2021. 1 CCD will be converted into 2,71 Equity Shares, i.e. 24,390,000 equity shares will get issued on the date of conversion of CCD.

CCDs carrying coupon of 0.01% on the face value of the CCDs shall be paid to the CCD holders. The CCDs will be convertible into equity shares within period not exceeding 10 years from the date
of allotment i.e. March 27,2024, 1 CCD will be converted into 2.45 Equity Shares. i.e. 8,575,000 equity shares will get issued on the date of conversion of CCD.

Note 1:

The Company has neither allotted any shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or as bonus shares nor has it bought back any share during the period of five years

immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

*Includes shares held by Nominee Shareholders
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As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Other Equity
(i) Reserves & Surplus
{a) Capital Reserve 402.85 402.85
{b) Capital Redemption Reserve 30.00 30.00
{c) Securities Premium Account 5,564.51 5,564.51
(d) ESOP Reserve 62.41 62.41
{e) Retained earnings (14,260.26) (13,285.25)
(f) Debenture Redemption Reserve 1,202.05 1,202.05
(ii) Revaluation Reserve through other comprehensive income 817.89 870.04
(6,180.55) (5,153.39)

Refer note Statement of changes in Equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

Capital Reserve
The company recognises profit and loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the company's own equity instruments to capital reserve.

Capital redemption reserve
As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum
equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of

section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issuance of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Of the above, Securities premium pertaining to CCPS is Rs. 486.40 million (previous year: Rs, 486.40 million).

General reserve

The general reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general
reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general
reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and loss.

Debenture redemption reserve

The Companies Act 2013 requires companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve from annual profits until such debentures are
redeemed. The Company is required to transfer a specified percentage (as provided in the Companies Act, 2013) of the outstanding redeemable debentures to
debenture redemption reserve. The amounts credited to the debenture redemption reserve may not be utilised except to redeem debentures, On redemption
of debentures, the amount may be transferred from debenture redemption reserve to retained earnings.

ESOP reserve

Certain employees of the company have been granted options to acquire equity shares of the Ultimate Parent Company {Edelweiss Financial Services Limited).
This reserve represents the cost of these options based on their fair value at the grant dates as recognised over the vesting period of such options, to the
extent that the Ultimate Parent Company has not recovered such cost from the company.

Revaluation Reserve

The company decided to move to revaluation model from cost model for accounting a class of asset (i.e. flats and bullding) as at 31st March 2020. The
management approved revaluation of owned land and buildings classified under property plant and equipment after assessing the valuation made by duly
appointed Independent valuer. The difference between valuation amount and the carrying value of land and buildings is accounted under Revaluation Reserve

through other comprehensive income,
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As at
31 March 2024

Non-Current borrowings

As at
31 March 2023

Secured

Non-convertible redeemable debentures - Others* 6,096.64 6,515.67

Unsecured

Non-convertible redeemable debentures (NCDs) - related party 2,750.00 5,629.30

Preference Shares Capital - related party 20.00 .

Loans and advances from related parties 2,400.00 2,000.00
11,266.64 14,144.97

*Secured by charge on immovable property and a pari passu charge on the receivables to the extent equal to the principal and

interest amount i.e. redemption value of debentures.(Also Refer Note 62}

Other financial liabilities

Rental Deposits 87.88 67.96
Financial Guarantee obligation 11.06 -
98.94 67.96
Non-Current provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated leave absences 6.59 5.29
6.59 5.29
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Current borrowings

Unsecured

Loan from related parties
Current Maturities of Long term borrowing
Non-convertible debentures

Commercial paper
Less : Unamortised discount

Preference Shares Capital from Fellow Subsidiaries

Interest accrued on borrowings

Total

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

- 5,231.60
2,750.00 -
4,720.00 2,320.00
(69.75) (110.26)
4,650.25 2,209.74
- 447.10
586.49 65.70
7,986.74 7,954.14
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As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

23 Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises
Total O\ftstandmg dues to creditors other than micro, small and medium 743.84 220.84
enterprises

743.84 220.84

Trade payables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
years
(i) MSME - : : N -
(i) Others 743.84 - - B 74334
(iit)Disputed dues-MSME - . - ~ -
(iv)Disputed dues-Others - B R T -
Total 743.84 - - - 743.84
As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
years
(i) MSME - - N - -
{ii) Others 220.84 - - - 220.84
(iii)Disputed dues-MSME . N z T -
{iv)Disputed dues-Others . . N ~ -
Total 220.84 - - - 220.84
As at As at

31 March 2024  March 31, 2023
24  Other financlal liabilities

Accrued salaries and benefits 152.71 162.96
Unpaid dividends 0.29 2.25
1.28 1.29

Retention money payable

Rental Deposits - 92.81
Other payables 4.28 6.84
158.56 266.15
25  Other current liabilitles
Withholding taxes, Goods & services tax and other taxes payable 19.90 12.23
Others 4.03 16.52
23.93 28.75
26  Current provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Compensated absences - 1.28
0.16 3.48

Provision for capex

0.16 4.76
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For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

27

28

29

30

31

Fee and commission income

Business support services income
Advisory income

Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes

{A) Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss

Investments

{Loss)/ profit on trading of securities (net)

Fair value gain/{loss)

Fair value gain - Debt Instruments

Derivatives

{Loss)/ profit on trading in equity derivative instruments (net)

{B) Others

Profit / {loss) on sale of long term investment

Income distribution from Fund

Share of profit / {loss) in a Limited Liability Partnership

Total Gain/(loss) from treasury (A+B)

Interest income

Interest Income from group company loan
Interest Income on credit substitutes
Interest income on fixed deposits

Interest income on debt instrument
Interest Income - others

Other operating revenue

Rental income

Other income

Interest on Income Tax Refund
Miscellaneous income
Profit / {loss) on sale of long term investment *

550.10 776.46
6.74 6.88
556.84 783.34
49.92 192.06
(243.81) (310.96)
2.66 (45.29)
9.91 8.69
109.31 41.14
9.04 70.55
(0.05) (0.04)
(63.02) {43.85)
1,075.08 1,315.25
. 275.19
24.74 20.94
208.60 164.74
0.12 2.47
1,308.54 1,778.59
281.82 355.42
281.82 355.42
37.61 14.81
171.03 5.21
389.15

208.64 409.17

*The Company has sold its stake in one of its fellow subsidiaries based on independent valuer report to another fellow subsidiary of the
Company and accordingly, other income includes a gain on sale amounting to Rs. Nil millions ( Previous year Rs. 384, 90 millions).
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For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
32 Impairment on financial instruments
Bad- debts and advances written off 3.61 238.47
Diminution in value of investments (86.71) 510.13
Provision for non performing assets 24.68 (558.18)
Provision for doubtful debts 7.45 (1.10)
Other Credit Cost - 9.51
(50.97) 198.83
33 Employee benefits expenses
Salaries and Wages 401.52 367.08
Contribution to provident and other funds 19.44 21.29
Share based payment to employees 2.12 3.68
Staff welfare expenses 15.82 39.62
438.90 431.67
34 Finance costs
Interest
Interest on debentures 1,277.53 1,179.79
Interest on inter-corporate deposits - 2.71
Interest on bank overdraft - 0.87
Interest on loan from holding company 401.57 1,034.03
Interest on loan from group companies 167.37 427.01
Interest on lease liabilities 0.22 0.26
Others
Discount on commercial paper 267.60 410.75
Other financial and bank charges 5.04 6.21
Finance charge on preference shares issued - 192.60
2,119.33 3,254.23
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For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
35 Other expenses
Advertisement and business promotion 6.14 6.63
Auditor's remuneration (refer note below) 10.72 9.05
Commission and brokerage - 0.14
Communication expenses 34.65 21.38
Computer expenses 111.72 128.85
Computer software 78.75 109.80
Directors' sitting fees 1.35 1.02
Donation 0.50 -
Electricity charges (net) 23.25 31.62
Foreign exchange loss (net) 0.10 0.08
Insurance 2.99 2.44
Legal and professional fees 170.19 250.98
Loss / (gain) on sale of fixed assets (net) 0.12 8.46
Membership and subscription 3.21 5.18
Office expenses 49.86 64.21
Rates and taxes 10.37 8.68
Rating support fees 4.63 4.06
Rent 6.14 4.56
Repairs and maintenance - Building & others 24.82 7.93
Goods and service tax (GST) 19.92 6.83
Stamp duty 1.06 0.68
Stock exchange expenses 1.46 1.00
Travelling and conveyance 11.17 11.50
Miscellaneous expenses 17.17 5.31
590.29 690.39
Auditor's remuneration:
Statutory audit 5.96 5.50
Limited Review 3.95 3.00
Certification and consultation 0.75 0.44
Reimbursement of expenses 0.07 0.11
10.72 9.05




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

36

37

Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (NCSL), a former associate of the Holding Company, received a order from NSE Clearing Ltd (NCL) in
the matter of Anugrah Stock and Broking Pvt. Ltd (Anugrah or Trading member) and Vrise Securities Pvt. Limited. The Company has
provided an undertaking on behalf of NCSL to maintain sufficient unencumbered assets worth Rs. 92 crores on the instruction from NCL,
The Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) has upheld NCL order on December 15, 2023. NCSL has appealed against the SAT order at the
Supreme Court of india, asserting compliance with all relevant laws and regulations. The appeal is in the process of admission with the
Supreme Court of India.

NCSL believes that it has acted in accordance with the agreement entered with the trading member and in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. Accordingly, there is no adjustment required in the standalone financial statement of the Company.

The Company is in process of regularization of municipal permission with respect to the Edelweiss House owned by the Company.
During previous quarter, the Company had received environmental clearance regarding the said matter. During the year ended March
31, 2024, the Company has paid Rs. 13.40 million toward the said reguiarization and had placed Bank guarantee amounting to Rs. 45.00
million to State Environment Impact Assessment Authority.
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38 Segment reporting

Primary Seg (Busi g }

For management purpose, the Company’s business is organised into business segments based in products and services and has four reportable segments as

mentioned below:

Segment Activities covered

Capital based business Capital intensive business includes Lending, investing and investment property

Treasury management Interest income and trading in securities

Business Support Services Centralized support services in the nature of administration, compliance, payroll, finance and accounts,
Technical support etc. provided to group companies

Purchase and sale of commodities

Trading in commodities

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are either specifically identified with individual segments or have been
allocated to segments on a systematic basis. Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and liabilities have been prepared,

The Executive management committee is the Chief operating decision maker{(CODM} and monitors the operating resuits of its business units separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

Secondary Segment
Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the domestic segment and

therefore there is no reportable geographic segment.

The following table gives information in terms of provisions of Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (Ind AS 108)

particulars As at/ For the year ended | As at/ For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
| Segment Revenue
a) Capital based business 1,636.94 2,441.06
b} Treasury management 68.17 50.34
¢} Business Support Services 550.10 776.46
d) Trading in commodities 816.55 4,729.50
e) Unallocated 37.61 14,81
Total Income 3,109.37 8,012.17
" Segment Results
a) Capital based business {1,105.37) (1,688.75)
b) Treasury management (73.65) (354.52)
c) Business Support Services 132.48 272.39
d) Trading in commodities 0.22 2.98
e) Unallocated 37.61 14.81
Loss before taxation {1,008.71) (1,753.08)
Less : Provision for taxation 17.66 215.46
Profit after { (1,026.37) (1,968.54)
n Segment Assets
a) Capital based business 25,239.69 24,225.17
b) Treasury management 3.05 178.00
c) Business Support Services 55.29 170.07
d) Unallocated 1,987.30 2,446.32
Total 27,285.34 27,019.56
v Segment Liabllitles
a} Capital based business 18,944.94 22,524.21
b) Treasury management 1,341,55 169.79
Total 20,286.49 22,694.00 |
v Capital expenditure {Including i gibles under develop t)
a) Capital based business 17.16 20.69
Total 17.16 20.69
As at/ For the year ended | As at/ For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
vi Depreclation and amortisation
a} Capital based business 198,15 451,86
b) Treasury managament 0.96 .
¢) Businass Support Services 5.09 11.74
Total 204.20 463.60
Vil Significant non-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortisation
a) Capital based business (50.97)
Total {50.97)
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39 Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 ~ "Related Party Disclosure”:

39.1 List of related party

{A) Names of related parties by whom control is exercised
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, ultimate Holding Company
Edel Finance Company Limited , Holding Company

{B) Entities which are controlled by the Company {Subsidiaries Company)
NiDO Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited
Allium Finance Private Limited

{C) Fellow Subsidiaries with whom the Company has transactions
ECL Finance Limited
Edelcap Securities Limited
ECap Securities and Investments Limited (Formerly known as Ecap Equities Limited)
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited
Ecap Equities Limited (Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)
Edel Investments Limited
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited
Edelgive Foundation
Edelweiss International Singapore Pte Limited
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
ZUNO General Insurance Limited
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP
Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund
India Credit Investment Fund If
India Credit Investment Fund i
Sekura India Management Limited
Edelwelss Real Assets Managers Limited

(D) Associate of Ultimate holding company (EFSL) {upto 30th March 2023)
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Subsidiaries of Associate
Nuvama Asset Management Limited (formerly known as ESL Securities Limited)
Nuvama Capital Services (IFSC) Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Securities (IFSC) Limited)
Nuvama Custodial Services Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Capital Services Limited)
Nuvama Wealth and investment Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited)
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {(Nuvama Clearing Services Limited) (NCSL)

(E) Key Management Personnel
Mr. Ravindra Dhobale (Executive Director & Chief Financia! Officer}

Mr. Chirag Dilipkumar Shah {Company Secretary) {upto February 07, 2024)
Ms. Christina Dsouza (Company Secretary) (w.e.f. February 07, 2024)

(F) Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Nikhil Joharl
Mr. Santosh Dadheech
Ms. Ananya Suneja

(G) iIndependent Directors
Dr, Vinod Juneja
Mr. Bharat Bakshi
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Related Parties {Continued}

39,2 Transaction and Balances with related parties
{A) Transaction with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Name of related parties 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Capital account transactions during the yesr
Non-Cumnulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Share issued Edel Finance Company ed - 20.00
Redemption of Preference Share Issued Edel Finance Company timited - 10.00
Ecap Equities Limited 415.35 10.00
Loans taken from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 2,325.00 8,320.00
£CL Finance Limited 2,050.00 1,590.00
Edel Finance Company Limited 610.00 2,620.70
Edel Investments Limited - 1,866.40
Allium Finance Private Limited - 83.50
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 250.00 250.00
€delcap Securitles Limited - 1,079.80
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as 4,550.00 6,200.00
Edelwelss Housing Finance Limited}
Ecap Equities Limited 3,036.50 5,353.35
Loans repaid to Edelweiss Financlal Services Limited 4,025.00 13,559.23
ECL Finance Limited 2,050.00 1,590.00
Edel finance Company Limited 2,281.50 949.20
Edel investments Limited . 2,551.40
Altium Finance Private Limited - 164.22
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 250.00 3,720.00
Edelcap Securities Limited - 2,024.26
Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as 4,550.00 6,200.00
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Ecap Equities Limited 4,496.60 3,893.25
Loans given to Edel Finance Company Limited - 4,786.80
Edel Investments Limited 388.50 -
Edelcap Securitles Limited 1,316.50 1,428.58
£delweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 1,720.00 156.44
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited . 1,000.00
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited - 778.50
Edelwelss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 220,00 220.00
Comtrade Commadities Services Limited - 6.07
Ecap Equities Limited 7,025.40 6,881.57
ECap Securities And Investments timited 7,020.33 -
Edelweiss tnvestment Adviser Limited 1,990.60 5,613.91
Edelweiss Retall Finance Limited N 1,750.00
Loans repaid by ECL Finance Limited - 780.00
Edel Finance Company timited . 7,419.40
Edelcap Securities Limited 1,316.50 1,428.58
£del Investments Limited 388.50 -
Edelwelss Investment Adviser Limited - 9,216.50
Edelwelss Global Wealth Management Limited 780.00 156,44
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 1,750.00
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited - 1,000.00
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited - 2,322.76
Edelwaiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 220.00 330.00
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited - 20.53
Ecap Equities Limited 7,025.40 7,280.75
Purchase of Secutity from ECL Finance Limited 5,505.14 -
Edelwelss Retail Finance Limited 1,600.42 -
Loss on redemption of ICIF 11l units paid to ECL Finance Limited 509.70 N
Sale of debentura to ECap Securities And Investments Limited 2,670.24 -
ECL Finance Limited : 1,889.04
Edelwelss Investment Adviser Limited - 166.89
€delcap Securities Limited 114.71 373.85
Edel Finance Compoany Limited : 2,130.43
Ecap Equities Umited 295.64 :
Investments in funds sold to ECL Finance Limited - 513.98
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited : 1,671.49
Investments in equity shares sold to Edelweiss Securities And [nvesiments Private Limited - 495.28
Withdrawal of capita) from partnership firm Edelwalss Resolution Advisors LLP - 0.13
Invastments in Other india Credit investrnent Fund il - 2,172.11
Comtrade Commadities Services Limited 10,00 >
Aapayment from tund India Cradit wvestmant Fund 1l 2,879.15 17963
India Cradit Investmant Fund it 2,683.7% -
Margin placad with (Total Method Nuvama Cloaring Services Limited 0.5%
Edel Investmants Limiled an 4.75
Margin withdrawn trom {Total Muethod) Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 2.0%
Ldel Investmants Limited 311 AlS
Purchase of fixed assats from Nuvama Wealth Management timited : 0.00
£C1 Flnance Limited : Q.12
Edalwalss Aatall Financa Limiled : 0.01
Leap Equiting Limited 4.5 ‘
Ldal Investenams Limiled 0.27 0.14

028

fdetcap Secutities Limited (R
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{Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

Refated Parties {Continued)

Transaction and Balances with related parties

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Name of related parties 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Sale of fixed assets to Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited N 0.00
Edelcap Securities Limited 012 N
Ecap Equites Limited 0.00 -
Edel investments Limited 0.06 0.00
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.01 -
Purchase/subscription of debentures from ECL Finance Limited - -
E£cap Equities Limited 406.88 -
Nuvama Asset Management Limited - 53.35
Issuance of debentures to Ecap Equities Limited 5,500.00
Redemption of debentures held in E£cap Equities Limited 6,600.59 1,076.63
Redemption of debentures held by €cap Equities Limited . 4,440.10
Edelweiss Investment Adviser timited - 805.44
Edelcap Securities Limited - 355.56
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 8.30
Remuneration paid to Mr.Santosh Dadheech 6.00 -
Mr Chirag Shah 112 1.06
Shailly Kedia - 0.06
Ms.Christina D'souza 0.61 -
Nikhit fohari : 15.25
Director Sitling Fees Xunnasagaran Chinniah - 0.14
Mr.Bharat Bakshi 0.60 0.30
Mr.Vinod Juneja 0.7% 0.34
fncoma
Buslness support service charges from ECL Finance Limited 59.67 68.31
Nuvama Wealth and lnvestment Limited - 3.52
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited . 244.00
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as 52.98 53.53
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edelweliss Aetall Finance Limited 1.51 0.90
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited - 0.14
Edelwelss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 37.23 35.09
€Edel Finance Company Limited 2.15 27
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 50.50 46.76
Edelweiss Globat Wealth Management Limited 0.05 0.07
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 832 6.17
2UNO General Insurance Limited 62.27 53.88
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 841 4.89
Edelcap Securities Limited 39.38 65.44
Nuyams Wealth Finance Limited - 0.71
Comtrade Commadities Services Limited 0.03 0.08
€del invastments Limited 21.93 5.45
Edelweiss Internationat {Singapore) Pte. Limited 6.64 7.89
Ecap Equities Limited 16.75 13.96
Edeiwelss Toklo Life Insurance Company Limited 76.02 72.62
£delGive Foundation 2.03 8.15
Edetwelss Aeal Assets Managers Limited 0.20 -
Edeltweiss Investment Adviser Limited 1.34 1.85
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 5253 44.79
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited 0.00 0.01
Nuvama Asset Management Limited . 0.03
Sekura India Management Limited 6.88 0.50
£Cap Securities And Investments Limited 0.01 0.00
Corporate Guarantee Commission Income Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as 0.03 0.03
Edalweiss Housing Finance Limited
ECL Finance Limited 0.04 0.02
€del Finance Company timited 5.36 6.82
Edelweiss investment Adviser Limited 0.30 -
Edelweiss Retail Finance timited - 0.00
Interest income on debentures (Inctuding CCOJ ECL Finance Limited - 143.47
Edalweiss Invastment Advisar Limited 0.58 0.58
Edelwelss Retall Finance Limited 0.95 1.62
Ede! Finance Company timited 2.64 2.64
Ecap Equitles Limited 0.03 15.14
Interest income on Nifty Linked Debentures Ecap Equities Limited 269.59
Interest income on loan from ECL Finance Limited : 831
£Cap Securlties And Investments Limited 28,34 :
Edatweiss Invastment Adviser Limited 700.27 929.91
Nuvama Wealth and lnvestiment Limited . 11.36
Edelcap Securities Limited 6.32 30.37
Edalwoiss Alternative Assot Advisors Lirnited 2577 33.66
Edel investmants Limited 2.18 :
Edalweiss Global Wealth Managemant Limited 36,40 4.97
£dolwelss Ratail Finance Limited - 2.2%
Ecap Equities Limited 27580 1076
Comtiade Commoditiey Sarvices Limiled . 1Ay
Edelweiss Securitios And Investments Private Limilad - 10.69
Edel Kinance Company Limited : 151.5%
share of Protiin LLP Edeiwaiis Resolution Advisors LLP (Edalweiss Wealth
Adyisars LLP) 003
Shate of toss from fund Edalwaiss Mullt Steatogy Fund Advisors LLP 0.0% 908




39.2

Edelweiss Rurai & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {continued)

{Currency : indian rupees in millions)
Related Parties (Continued)

Transaction and Balances with related parties

Particulars Name of related parties For the year ended For the year ended
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Rental income from ECL Finance timited 14.54 12.04
€delweiss Financial Services Limited 30.47 28.68
Nuvama Weaith Management Limited - 12.57
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited - 1.03
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 97.97 7179
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 55.06 64.31
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited : 98.14
Nido Hame Finance Limited {Formerly known as 0.00
Housing Finange Limited) 0.03
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited - 017
Edelcap Securities Limited 23.75 20.83
Edel tnvestments Limited 10.97 18.72
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.10 13.87
Ecap Equities Limited 6.47 4.42
EdelGive Foundation 1.21 1.18
Nuvama Asset Management Limited - 0.01
Investment management support service from Edelweiss International {Singapore) Pte. timited 10.93 8.20
Cost reimbursements recovered from ECL Finance Limited 247 1.30
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.98 0.91
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited - 4.81
Nuvama Wealth and lnvestment Limited - 0.06
Edelweiss Alternatlve Asset Advisors Limited 4.80 2.85
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited - 9.84
Edelcap Securities Limited 196 114
Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerty known as. 0.00 0.01
Edetweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited - 0.01
Edel Investments Limited . 0.99 2.05
ZUNO General Insurance Limited 15.29 2.27
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 0.01 .-
Ecap Equities Limited 0.02 0.41
EdelGive Foundation 0.10 0.05
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.01 0.80
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 1.96 2.67
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 0.00
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 0.00 -
Nuvama Asset Management Limited - 0.0
Sekura India Management Limited 0.00 -
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited - 0.00
Expanses
Clearing expenses to Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 045
Nuvama Weaith Management Limited - 0.00
Cost reimbursement to Edelwelss Financial Services Limited 0.13 -
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 2.66 13.92
Ecap Equitles Limited 212 343
Edelcap Securities Limited 3 3
Nuvama Weaith Finance Limited - 0.08
ECL Finance Limited 2.98 14.66
Nido Home Finance timited (Formerly known as -
Edealweiss Housing Finance Limited) 0.02
Edel Investments Limited - 167
Edel Finance Company Limited - 0.12
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.25
Management fees paid to ECL Finance Limited $3.38 117.60
Brokerage and commission expenses Edel invastments Limited 0.44 0.73
[nterest expenses on foans from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 388.22 1,009.00
Edel Finance Company Limited 13.35 25.03
ECL Finance Ltimited 43.32 28.13
Edelcap Securities timited - 35.14
£dal Investments Limited 6252
Allium finance Private Limited - 12.75
Ecap Equities Limited 19.00 19.78
Edelwalss Retail Finance Limited 6.00 145.97
Edefweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited -
Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as. 99.0% 122,10
Housng Einance Limitad)
Interest expenses on debentures Edelcap Securities Limited 76.35
Ecap Equities Limited 47756
Edel investments Limited, 044
Edalweiss tnvestment Adviser Limited 1.38
Interast an CCD Edul Financa Cornpany Limited 0.83 17
interest / dividend on preference shares ECL Finance Limited - Bi.64
Ecap Equities timited 8,60 11017
Intesayt Expy - 1ICD Nuyama Wealth Managemant Limited 2.7
Rating faes to and Bank guarantee commission Nido Homa Finance Limited {Farmedy known as 0.6
tdel Housing finance Limited)
Ldotweiss Financial Seivices Limited 0.08

Cofporats Guarantes support les




Edelweiss Rurai & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

Reiated Parties (Continued)

39.2 Transaction and Balances with related parties

As at As at
(8)  Balances with related parties Name of related parties T erch 2024 YT
Assats
Accrued interest income on loans given Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited §7.15 55.82
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 13.91 -
ECap Securities And Investments Limited 25.51 -
Ecap Equities Lirnited 0.32 0.17
E£del tnvestments Limited 0.06 0.00
€delweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 1.83 3.12
Edelcap Securities Limited 2.86 -
Interest receivable on debentures from Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.03 0.03
£del Finance Company Limited 1.78 1.78
investments in equity shares In Nido Home Finance Limited {Farmerly known as 2,829.00 2,829.00
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 48.86 38.86
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 1,000.10 1,000.10
Allium Finance Private Limited 926.27 67.35
Investments in preference shares in Allium Finance Private Limited - 858.92
Investment in others Indla Credit Investment Fund 11 - 2,611.79

Partner’s current account - receivable from Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 3.06 31
Partner's capital account - receivable from Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 008 0.05

Investments in debentures(Inctuding CCD) Ecap Equities Limited - 6,600.59
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited $,750.00 5,750.42

Trade receivables from Edel Finance Company Limited 0.57 217
Edelwelss Internationat {Singapore) Pte. Limited 2.00 338
EdelGive Foundation 0.65 1.62
Edefweiss Trusteeship Company Limited - 0.00
Edel Investments Limited 2,54 2.30
Ecap Equities Limited 175 2.91
Edelcap Secyritles Limited 512 16.33
£delweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limlited 10.52 2511
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited ‘ 0.89 345
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 12.27 18.10
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 12.51 11.55
ZUNO General Insurance Limited 6.73 4.44
Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as 9.79 11.03
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.01 0.36
Edelwelss Securlties And Investments Private Limited 5.06 8.60
Edelwelss Tokio Life Insurance Company Lirmited 12.22 1054
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP - 0.02
ECL Finance Limited 31.50 35.35
£delweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 0.22 0.05
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 0.43 0.32
ECap Securities And investments Limited 0.00 0.00
Alfium finance Private Limited - 0.01
Sekura India Management Limited 0.68 -
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 0.00 0.00

Other Receivable ECL Finance Limited 0.00 0.00
ZUNO General Insurance Limited 0.30 0.00
Edelwelss Global Wealth Management Limited 0.13 N
Edeleap Securities Limited 0.51 0.58
Comlrade Commodities Services timited 0.00 0.00
Edel tnvestments Limited 0.57 0.09
Edelwelss Investmant Adviser Limited 0.04
Edalweiss Securlties And Investments Private Limited 001 0.00
Ecap Equities Limited 0.03 156.20
Edel Finance Company Limited 0.11 0.02
Edelwelss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.05 .
€Cap Securities And tavestments Limited .01 -
Edatwelss Financial Services Umited 1.98 1.40
Allium Flnance Private Limited 0.02 0.09
EdalGive Foundation 338 0.64
Edalwelss Assol Managemant Limited 0.1t -
Edelweiss Aviet Reconstruction Company Limited 0.15
Nido Home finance Limited (Formerly known as 0.00 0.00
Edelweisy Housing Finance Limited)
Edalwelss Retail Financa Limited 0.29
Edelwelss Toklo Life Insurance Company Limited 0.02 -
Edalwelss Rural & Corporats Services Limited :
Edatwelss Multl Steategy Fund Advisors LLP 0.02 0.02

Loans and advances given to Edelwess investment Advisar Limited 7,880.32 5,889.72
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 940.00
Edalwelss Alternative Assel Advisars Limited 220.00 220.00
Ecap Equities Limited 000 -
£Cap Securities And Inyastments Limited 1,020.13

Nan Convartible Debanturay Ecap Equitiny Umited 1,208.21 123.76

Non Convaitible Debentures fdalweiss Mol Finance Limited 10 1047

24.54

Edol Finance Comprany bimited 2445
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Edetweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

{Currency : indian rupees in millions}
Refated Parties {Continued}

Transaction and Balances with related parties

Balances with related parties

As at

As at

N f related parti
ame of related parties 31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Uabilities
Subordinated Preference Shares Edel Finance Company Limited 20.00 20.00
Ecap Equities Limited - 406.68
Accrued interest expense on loans taken from ECL Finance Limited 10.54 0.87
Edel Investments Limited - 183
£del finance Company Limited 242 7.72
Edelweiss Retall Finance Limited 1.87 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 32.19 50.63
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as 19.75 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Ecap Equities Limited 8.70 4.74
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited -
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited - 0.00
Interest Payable-CCO Edel Finance Company Limited 0.02 0.90
Non convertible debentures held by Ecap Equities Limited 4,000.00 4,131.00
Edelcap Securities Limited - 1,369.00
ECL Finance Limited 1,500.00 -
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 200.00 -
Interest Payable on Debenture Ecap Equities Limited 65.13 113.18
Edelcap Securities Limited 9.02 17.63
Rental deposits received from Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited $0.00 50,00
ECL Finance Limited 0.54 -
Edelweiss Aiternative Asset Advisors Limited 17.72 17.72
Trade payables to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.27 0.05
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 0.21 -
€del finance Company Limited 0.01 -
Ecap Equities Limited 0.48 -
ECL Finance Limited 552.55 24.47
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 0.01 0.01
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 0.00 -
Edelweiss Ayset Management Limited 0.63 0.01
Edelcap Securitles Limjted 0.21 0.21
ZUND General Insutance Limited 0.00 :
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 0.56 0.51
Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as 0.0% -
Edelwelss Housing finance Limited]
Edelwelss Toklo Life insurance Company Limited 0.00 0.00
ECap Securities And Investments Limited - 0.1}
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.43 8.53
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 0.03
Edelvalue Partners . 0.00
Other Payahle Edelwelss Financial Services Limited 0.74 N
Edel Finance Company Limited 174 -
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company timited 0.10 0.87
Edelwaiss Retall Finance timited 0.31 0.46
Alium Finance Private Limited 0.00 0.00
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 0.02 -
EdelGlve Foundation 1.96 0.24
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 0.00 Q.09
Nido Home Finance Limited {(Formerly known as 0.00 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edelweiss Asset Management tLimited 0.08 12.11
Edalwalss Altornative Asset Advisors Limited 0.01 0.87
Edel Investmants Limited 018 0.75
2UNQ General Insurance Limited 0.18 -
ECL Finance Limited 0.00 0.01
€Cap Securities And Investments Limited 2.94 -
Ecap Equities Uimited 0.56 0.61
Edetweiss Yoklo Lifa tnsurance Company Limited 0.01 -
Edelweiss Securities And (nvestments Private Limited, 0.00 -
Sakura India Mansgemant Limited 0.03 0.01
Edelcap Securities Limited 0.03 0.01
Edelweiss flural & Corporate Services Limited -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Limited .05 .
Loans taken from Alllum Finance Privale Limited -
Edal Finance Company Limitad : 1,671.50
Edalwelss Financial Services tLimited 2,400.00 4,100.00
Edelwnlys Rural & Corporate Seivices Limited :
Ecap Equities Limited 1,460.10
Off balance shast item
Corporate guarantee given for Nido Homa Flnance Limited {Formetly Xnown as 826.23 1,353.2%
Edalwelss Housing Finance Limited)
ECL Finance Limited 3559 14930
Edal Finarice Company Limited 62193 701 .80
Edelweis inyestimant Adviser Limitad 2,665 46 3,290.60

0.00 indleates amounts tuss than Re. 0.01 millions
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40

investments in partnership firms:

Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Total capital of partnership firm Rs. 0.10 millions Rs. 0.10 millions
Name of partners Share in capital and share in profit/loss
Ecap Equities Limited (formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 50.00% $0.00%

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 50.00% 50.00%
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
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41

41.1

41.2

41.3

42

Contingent liabilities and commitments :
Contingent liabilities and commitments

a) Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending Rs. 209.28 million (Previous year: Rs. 248.10 million).

b} The Company has given composite corporate guarantee to bank for Rs. 578.70 millions (Previous year: Rs. 585.50 millions) for
availing fund based Banking facilities by its subsidiary/fellow Subsidiary Companies i.e. Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly
known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited}, ECL Finance Limited and Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited.

With reference Deed of Guarantee agreement between the Company and the Lender, the liability of the Company is lower of value
of immovable properties of the Company or outstanding respective facilities of the respective Group Companies. The charge
created on immovable properties of the Company amounting to Rs. 578.70 millions ( Previous year: Rs, 585.50 million).

c) Corporate guarantee given by the company to the bank for Rs. 603.43 millions (Previous year: Rs.917.05 millions) for availing Fund
based Banking facilities by its subsidiary Company Nido Home Finance Limited.

d) The Company has given guarantee of Rs. 621.93 millions (Previous year Rs.701.80 millions) on behalf of Edel Finance Company
Limited ('EFCL'),a holding company, which has sold certain financial assets to Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
{'EARC'), another group company. The terms of sale required any Edelweiss group company to provide EARC with unconditional
and irrevocable guarantee for securing the guaranteed obligaiion of EFCL.

e) The Company has provided Corporate Guarantee to VISTRA ITCL (India) Limited for borrowings from BPEA Credit India Fund HI
(‘Barings’) amounting to Rs. 2,665.46 millions ( Previous year Rs. 3,290.60 millions) on behalf of its wholly owned subsidiary
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Ltd (EIAL) in respect of credit facilities obtained by EIAL.

f) Undrawn Commitments for AIF funds Rs. Nil million (Previous Year Rs. 384.95 million)

g) The company has provided bank guarantees amounting to Rs. 475.86 millions { Previous year: Rs 423.44 millions).

The Company's pending litigations mainly comprise of claims against the Company pertaining to proceedings pending with Income Tax,
Excise, Custom, Sales/VAT tax / GST and other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and
has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial
statements. The amount of provisions / contingent liabilities is based on management’s estimate, and no significant liability is expected

to arise out of the same.

The Company has received demand notices from tax authorities on account of disallowance of expenditure for earning exempt income
under Section 14A of Income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962. The Company has filed appeal/s and is
defending its position. Based on the favourable outcome in Appellate proceedings in the past and as advised by the tax advisors,
Company is reasonably certain about sustaining its position in the pending cases, hence the possibility of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits on this ground is remote.

Pursuant to the Income Tax Authorities {"the ITA") search during March 2023. The Company is filing necessary responses to the notices
received from the ITA. Post March 31, 2024, the Company has received assessment order from ITA for AY 2022-23 with Nil tax demand.
Thus, no adjustment has been made or is required in the standalone financial statement of the Company.

The Company has provided an undertaking of Rs. 2,210 million (net) to a fellow subsidiary company for any future markdown, if any on
security receipts purchased by such subsidiary at fair value.

Encumbrances on fixed deposits held by the Company:

a) Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 61.69 millions (Previous year: Rs. 59.24 millions) have been pledged with banks for obtaining the
bank guarantee provided to VAT authorities for meeting statutory requirements.

b) Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 6.60 millions (Previous year: Rs.6.60 millions) have been pledged with bank for obtaining the bank
guarantee provided to Customs authorities for meeting statutory requirements.

¢} Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 13.35 millions (Previous year: Rs. 13.09 millions) have been pledged with bank for obtaining the
bank guarantee provided to various mandis for margin and license requirements,

d) Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 367.58 millions (Previous year: Rs. 322,53 millions) have been pledged with banks for securing
bank Guarantee,

e) Interest accrued on above Fixed deposits Rs. 26,64 millions (Previous year: Rs. 21.98 millions) have been pledged with banks,
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44

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders (after adjusting for interest on the
convertible preference shares and interest on the convertible bond, in each case, net of tax) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares
that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

In accordance with Ind AS- 33 - "Earnings Per Share" prescribed by Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015, the
computation of earnings per share is set out below:

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Profit /{loss) for the year {A) (1,026.37) (1,968.54)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,65,35,367 4,65,35,367
Number of Shares issued during the year 2,00,45,000 -
Compulsory Convertible Debenture and Preference share 3,43,24,955 2,57,49,955
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,09,05,322 7,22,85,322
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS (B) 8,64,77,781 7,22,85,322

Number of dilutive potential equity shares -

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS  (C) 8,64,77,781 7,22,85,322

Earnings per share (EPS) {Face value Re.1 each)

Basic earnings share (in Rs) * (11.87) (27.23)

Dilutive earning per share (in Rs) (11.87) (27.23)

*The weighted average number of shares takes into account 3,43,24,955 equity shares to be converted on
issuance of compulsorily convertible debentures (“CCD") & compulsorily convertible preference shares (“CCPS”)

Capital commitments (to the extent not provided for):

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account {net of advances) and not provided
for is Rs. Nil millions (Previous year: Rs. 2,04 millions).
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45 Leases:-

1) This note provides information for Right of use assets where the company is a lessee. Company has not given any property on

lease.
Carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance as at 0.92 2.59
Addition / disposal during year - -
Amortisation for the year (0.70) (1.67)
Closing balance as at 0.22 0.92

2)  This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee.
Carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance as at 1.14 3.07
Addition / disposal during year {0.27) (2.19)
Accretion of interest 0.22 0.26
Closing balance as at 1.09 1.14

3) The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases.

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on ROU of assets 0.70 1.67
Interest cost 0.22 0.26

0.92 1.93

Total amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

4) This note provides information for total cash outflow on account of leases.

Particulars Mar-24 Mar-23
Cash outflow of long term leases 0.22 0.26

5) This note provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities, on an undiscounted basis.

Particular As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than 1 year - .
1-3 years 1.09 1.14
3-5 years - -

More than 5 years - -
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46  Retirement beneflt plan

A)

8)

Defined contribution plan (Provident fund and National Pension Scheme):

Rs. 17.08 miltion {Previous year: Rs. 17.38 million) is recognised as expense and included in "Employee benefit expense” in the statement of profit and loss

Defined benefit plan (Gratuity):

The following tables summarise the components of the net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded and unfunded

status and amount recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan.

Statement of profit and loss

Exp recognised In the t of Profit and Loss:

2023-24 2022.23
Current service cost 4.50 5.01
Interest on defined benefit obligation (2.14) (1.86)
Total Included in 'Employee benefits expense’ 2.36 3.15
Movement in Other Comprehensive income:

2023-24 2022-23
Balance at start of year (Loss)/ Gain (24.52) (20.33)
Re-measurements on define benefit obligation (DBO}
a. Actuarial (Loss)/ Gain from changes in financial assumptions {0.18) 2.23
b. Actuarial (Loss)/ Gain from experience over the past year {1.81) (0.75)
Return on plan assets excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/ (asset) 7.28 (2.36)
Re-measurements on Asset Ceiling
Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling excluding
amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) (17.29} (3.30)
Balance at end of year (Loss)/ Gain (36.52) (24.52)
Balance sheet
Reconclliation of defined benefit obligation {DBO) :

2023-24 2022.23
Present value of DBO at the beginning of the year 35.85 37.42
Transfer in / (Out) {1.48) (2.92)
Interest cost 2.44 2.04
Current service cost 4.50 5.01
Benefits paid (6.73} (4.22)
Actuarial (gain)/loss 2.00 {(1.48)
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 36.58 35.85
Reconctliation of falr value of plan assets:

2023-24 2022.23
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 95,69 92.61
Contributions by Employer 6.73 4.22
Benefits paid (6.73) (4.22)
Interest income 6.79 5.45
Return on plan asset excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/ (asset) 728 (2.30)

Y

Falr value of plan assets at the end of the year 109.76 95.69
Net Liabllity/ {(Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

2023-24 2022-23
Present Value of DBO 36.58 3585
Fair Value of Plan Assets 109.76 95.69
Net Liability/ {Asset) (73.19) (59.84)
Funded Status [Surplus/ (Deficit)] 73.19 59,84
Less: Amount not recognized as asset [Effect of limiting net assets to asset celling) 50.62 31,13
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognised In the Balance Sheet 22.56 28.711
Of Which, Short term Liability

1.81 0.7%

Experience Adjustment on Plan Liablities: {Gain)/ Loss
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46 Retirement benefit plan {Continued)
8) Defined benefit plan (Gratuity) (Continued):

Net asset / {liability) recognised in the balance sheet:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 36.58 35.85 37.43 53.23 74.96
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 109.76 95.69 92.61 86.07 70.80
Net Ulability / {Assets) (73.18) (59.84) (55.16) (32.84) 4.16
Less: Effect of limiting net assets to asset ceiling 50.62 31.13 26.28 - -
Liability / (Assets) recognised in the balance sheet {22.56) (28.71) {28.89) (32.84) 4.16
Expertence adjustments:
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
On plan liabilities: loss / {gain) 1.81 0.75 3.38 {6.10) 4.76
On plan assets: gain / (loss) - - - - -
Estimated contribution for next year - - - - 4.00
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:
2023-24 2022-23
Discount rate 7.00% 7.10%
Salary escalation 7.00% 7.00%
Employees attrition rate 16.00% 16.00%
Expected return on plan asset 7.10% 5.90%
Mortality Rate 1ALM 2012-14 (Ultimate) IALM 2012-14 (Ultimate)
Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets
2023-24 2022-23
Investment Funds with Insurance Company and Cash 96.7% 96.2%
Cash and cash equivalents 3.3% 3.8%
Total 100.0% 100.0%
Sensitivity Analysis
DBO Increases / {decreases) by 2023-24 2022-23
1.78 1.66

Increase of 1% in Salary Growth Rate
Decrease of 1% in Salary Growth Rate (1.65) (1.58)

Increase of 1% in Discount Rate {1.64) (1.57)
Decrease of 1% in Discount Rate 1.80 1,68
Increase of 1% in Attrition Rate Negligible 0.01
Decrease of 1% in Attrition Rate Negligible (0.01)
Mortality (Increase in expected lifetime by 1 year) Negligible Negligible
Mortality (Increase in expected lifetime by 3 years) Negligible Negligible

47 Employee Stock Optlon Plans

The Holding Company {Edelweiss Financial Services Limited ("EFSL"})) has Employee Stock Option Plans and Stock Appreciation Rights Plans (SAR) in force,
Based on such ESOP/SAR schemes, parent entity has granted an ESOP/SAR option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to
Company's employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options. The company has accepted such cross
charge and recognised the same under the employee benefit expense. Current year charge of Rs. 2,12 millions (previous year release of Rs. 3.68 millions),
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48 Cost sharing and other recoveries

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited, being the group company incurs certain expenditure which is for the common benefit of itself and other
group companies. Hence, such costs incurred by the company for the benefit of group companies are recovered as reimbursement by the company from
the group companies on similar basis.

Other recoveries:
As per the master service agreement, the company provides necessary support for activities relating to information technology, human resource,
administrative, finance and operations related services to its holding company, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries.

Rental income relates to amount recovered from the holding company, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, for occupying office premises in the company’s
building.

Disclosure of loans and advances pursuant to regulation 53(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing obligations and disclosure

a9 requirements) Regulations, 2015:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amount Maximum Amount Amount Maximum
outstanding ofs during the outstanding Amount ofs

year during the year
Loan to Holding Company & Subsidiary
a)Edel Finance Company Limited - - - 6,838.90
b)Comtrade Commodities Services Limited - - - 18.93
c)Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited* 7,880.32 7,880.32 5,889.72 10,553.99
d)ECap Securities And Investments Limited 7,020.33 7,020.33 - B
e)Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 220.00 220.00 220.00 330.00
f)Ecap Equities Limited - 4,602.40 - 2,521.68
g)Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 940.00 1,720.00 - 121.44
h)Edelweiss Securities and Investment Private Limited - - - 1,544.26
i}ECL Finance Limited - - - 780.00
j)Edelcap Securities Limited - 842.70 - 924 58
k)Edel Investments Limited - 382.50 - B
1) Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - - - 1,750.00
Loan from Holding Company & Subsidiary
a)Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 2,400.00 4,150.00 4,100.00 10,929.23
b)Edel Finance Company Limited - 1,671.50
c)Allium Finance Private Limited - - - 160.32
d) Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance

) - 1,650.00 -

Limited)
e)Ecap Equities Limited - 2,460.00 1,460.10 1,460.10
f)Edel Investments Limited - - 1,146.20
g)Edelcap Securities Limited - - - 1,156.16
h)Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited - - - 2,950.00
))ECL Finance Limited - 2,050.00 - 1,590.00
j) Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 250.00 -

k)Edel Finance Company Limited - - 167150 1,671.50
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50 Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises:
Trade Payables includes Rs. Nil million (Previous year: Nil million) payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Rs 0.05 million interest has been paid by the Company during the year (Previous year: Rs. 0.03

million) to “Suppliers” registered under this act. The afore mentioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its
inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said act.

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act ,2006

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at end of

accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises - -
Interest due on above B
Total - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with

amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting 0.05 0.03
year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified - _
under the MSMED Act 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of R R
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

51 Corporate social responsibility (CSR):
As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013:

i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year was Rs. Nil millions (Financial Year 2022-23 Rs. Nil millions)

it} Amount spent during the year on:

Yet to be paid in
Particulars In cash P Total
cash
Constructions / acquisition of any assets . - _

On purpose other than {i) above - .

Hi) Shortfall at the end of the year was Rs. Nil millions (Financial Year 2022-23 Rs. Nil millions)

iv) Total of previous years shortfall was Rs. Nil millions {Financial Year 2022-23 Rs. Nil millions)
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52 Risk Management framework

A) Governance framework
The primary objective of the Company's risk and financial management framework is to protect the company's shareholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of
financial performance objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities. The management recognises the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk managerment

systems in place.

B} Approach to capital management
Company objectives when managing capital, are to {a} maximise shareholder value and provide benefits to other stakeholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.
For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.
Company monitors capital using debt-equity ratlo, which is total debt divided by total equity.
Particular As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Total Debt 19,253.38 22,099.11
Equity 6,998.85 4,325.56
Net Debt to Equity 2.75 5.11
C) CreditRisk

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables and financial instruments.

The company’s management policy is to closely monitor creditworthiness of counterparties by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements on regular basis.

The company’s financial assets subject to the expected credit loss model within Ind AS 109 are short-term trade and other receivables and financial instruments. Company applies
the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss. Expected credit loss allowance in respect of receivables is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into

account historical credit loss experience.

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default, probabiiity of default and loss given default. The company has devised an internal model to evaluate the probability of
default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the financial instruments are classified into various stages as follows:

internal rating grade | grading description Stages
Performing

High grade 0 dpd and 1 to 30 dpd® Stage |
Standard grade 31 to 90 dpd* Stage Il
Non-performing

Individually impaired 90+ dpd* Stage Il

* dpd indicates days past due.

Credit loss Is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive {i.e., all cash shortfalls}, discounted at the original EIR.

Significant increase In credit risk (SICR)

Company considers a financial instrument defauited, classified as Stage 3 {credit-impaired) for ECL caleul in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due.
Classification of assets form stage 1 to stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion. Accounts which are more than 30 days past due have been Identified as accounts where
significant increase in credit risk has been observed. These accounts have been classified as Stage 2 assets. As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default,
the Company also considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events occur, the company carefully considers whether the event should resuit
in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

Probability of Default

Historical dpd data {s used to calculate historic default rates for each portfolio. This is done by using transition matrix which are calculated by assessing the transition from the one
dpd state to the default dpd state 12 months from the cohort date.

Loss Given Default {(LGD)

The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it s
expected to be realised and the time value of money. The Loss Glven Default {LGD) has been computed with workout methodology. Workout LGD is widely considered to be the
most flexible, transparent and logical approach to build an LGD model. Along with actual recoveries, value of the underlying collateral has been factored in to estimate future
recoverles In LGD computation, Workout LGD computation involves the actual recoveries as well as future recoverles {as a part of the workout process) on a particular facllity, as 4
percentage of balance outstanding at the time of Default/Restructuring. The assessment of warkout LGD was then performed. Principal outstanding at NPA was assessed, which
went into the di of the LGD ¢ LGD computation has heen done for each segment and sub-segment separately.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The amount which the borrower will owe to the portfolio at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Default (EAD). While the drawn credit line reflects the explicit exposure for
the Company, there might ba variable exposure that may increase tha EAD. These exposures are of the native whare the company provides future commitments, in addition to the
current credit. Therafore, the exposure will contaln both on and off balance sheet values. The value of exposurs Is given by the following formula:

EAD = Drawn Credit Line + Credit Conversion Factor * Undrawn Credit Line
Whera,
Drawn Credit Line = Current outstanding amount

Cradit Convarsion Factor {CCF) = Expoctad future drawdown as s proportion of undrawn amount Undrawn Cradit Ling = Difference batwaen the total amount which the Company
has committed and the drawn credit line While the drawn exposure and Hmits for the customer are available, the modelling of CCF ts raquired for computing the EAD
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D)

52.1.

Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or

another financial asset. Exposure to liquidity risk arises because of:

1)Possibility that the Company could be required to pay its current liabilities earlier than expected.
)Mismatch in maturity profile of assets and liabilities

1It)Detay in receipt of receivables including agency receivables

The Company’s policy is to satisfy redemption requests by the following means (in decreasing order of priority):

)Withdrawal of cash deposits
{I)Disposal of highly liquid assets (i.e. short-term, low-risk debt investments, inventory)
\I)Either disposal of other assets or increase of leverage

Analysls of financial assets and financial liabllities by remaining contractual maturitles

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's non derivatives financial liabilities. Repayments which are subject to notice
are treated as if notice were to be given immediately. However, the Company expects that the counterparties will not request repayment on the earliest date it could be

required to pay.
Analysls of non-derivative financial llabilities by remaining contractual maturities

As at 31-Mar-24

Non-derivative financlal liabilities Upto Between Between 6 Between More than Total
3 months 3 to 6 months months to 1 year 1year to 3 years 3 years

Trade payables 743.84 - - - - 743.84
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 75.48 - 2,400.00 2,475.48
Debt securities 7,911.26 - - 2,750.00 6,096.64 16,757.90
Subordinated financial liabilities - - - - 20.00 20.00
Other financial liabilities 158.56 - - 100.03 - 258,59
Total undisc d non-derlvative financlal liabllities 8,889.14 - - 5,250.03 6,116.64 20,255.81

Analysls of non-derivative financial assets by remaining contractual maturities

Non-derivative financlal assets Upto 3 Between 3 to Between 6 Between More than Total
months 6 months months to 1 year 1 year to 3 years 3 years
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 219.56 - - - 476.15 ~ 695.71
Trade receivables 121.88 - - : - 12188
Toans 1,980.59 - 8,184.83 - 6555 10,231.01
Tnvestments at Tair value through profit or loss - - 1,264.23 - - 1,764.23
Thvestments at amortised cost - B 317 - 9,015.27 9,018.35"
Other Tinancial assets 39.67 - : 122,80 - 162.47
Total undisc d non-derivative financial assets 2,361.70 - 9,452.18 122.80 9,557.01 21,493.69
Commitments Upto 3 Between 3 to Between 6 Between More than Total
months 6 months months to 1 year 1 year to 3 years 3years

Undrawn Toan and other commitments -

Analysls of non-derivative financlal liabllities by remaining contractual maturities

As at 31-Mar-23

Non-derivative financlal liabHities Upto Between Between 6 Between More than Total
3 months 3to6months monthsto L year  1yearto 3 years 3 years

Trade payables 22084 - - : - 220.84
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3,197.30 2,100,00 2,000.00 - 7,297.30
Debt securities 1,668.23 - 986.48 6,900.00 4,800.00 14,354.71
Subordinated financial liabilities - 427.10 - 20.00 44710
Other financial labilities 163.85 7.08 1.29 163.03 - 335.25
Total undiscounted non-derivative financial llabillties 2,052.92 3,631.48 3,087.77 9,083.03 4,800.00 22,655.20

Analysis of non-derivative financial assets by remaining contractual maturitles

Non-derlvative financial assets Upto 3 Between 3 to Between 6 Between More than'3 Total
months 6 months months to 1 year  1year to 3 years 3 years
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 83,83 10.30 29.10 3641 341.97 501.61
Trade recelvables 352,40 - - - - 35740
Loans - - 23633 6133 - 39766
Tavestments at fair value through profit or loss B5.38 1.30 37,33 76.72 3,607.84 3,758.57
Tnvestments at amortised cost 6,603.75 - - 2,879.00 617670 1560045
Other financial assets 2.12 - - 3347 B LS
Total undiscounted non-derlvative linanclal assets 7,127.48 11,60 302.76 2,986.03 10,126 31 20,5553
Commitments Upto 3 Between 3 to Botween 6 Between More than Yotal
months 6 months months to 1 year 1 year to 3 years 3 years
Undrawn Toan and other commitmants - - B4 KLl
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52.2. Analysis of risk concentration

As at 31-Mar-24

Industry analysis - Risk concentration

Components Financial services Total

Cash and bank balances 695.71 695.71
Trade receivables 121.88 121.88
Loans 10,231.01 10,231.01
Investments 10,282.62 10,282.62
Other financial assets 162.47 162.47
Total 21,493.69 21,493.69
Other Commitments - -
As at 31-Mar-23

Industry analysis - Risk concentration

Components Financial services Total

Cash and bank balances 501.61 501.61
Trade receivables 352.40 352.40
Loans 297.66 297.66
Investments 19,368.00 19,368.00
Other financial assets 35.59 35.59
Total 20,555.26 20,555.26
Other Commitments 384.95 384.95
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53

Collateral held and other credit enhancements

The tables on the following pages show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset.

Maximum exposure to credit risk (carrying amount before ECL) as at

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-23

Principal type of

collateral
Financial assets
Loans:
Retail Loans 451 13.05 No Collateral
Listed Equity shores &
immovable Properties
Wholesale loans- Credit Substitutes 561.59 583.34 for previous year.
Inter Corporate deposit 1,069.69 1,069.69 No Collateral
Group Loans 16,162.27 6,167.56 No Collateral
Trade receivables-Others 506.34 715.15 Unsecured
Other Financial Assets 162.47 35.62 No Collateral
Total financial assets at amortised cost 18,466.87 8,584.42
Financial assets at FVTPL 1,267.35 178.00 No Collateral
Total financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1,267.35 178.00
Total Financial assets 19,734.22 8,762.42
Financial guarantee contracts 4,469.51 5,494.95 No Collatergl
Other commitments (max exposure) 4,469.51 5,494.95
Total 24,203.73 14,257.37

Financial assets that are stage 3 and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses are given below:

Maximum exposure to
credit risk (carrying

Associated ECL

Carrying amount

Fair value of collateral

31-Mar-24 amount before ECL}

Financial assets

Loans:

Wholesale loans 561.59 561,59 - R
inter Corporate deposit 1,069.69 1,069.69 - T
Group Loans 5,934.73 5,934.73 - N
Total financlial assets

at amortised cost 7,566.01 7,566.01 - .
Loan commitments - - - .
Total 7,566.01 7,566.01 - .

Maximum exposure to
credit risk (carrying

Assoclated ECL

Carrying amount

Fair value of collateral

31-Mar-23 amount before ECL)

Financial assets

Loans:

Wholesale loans 583.34 532.82 50.52 50.52
Inter Corporate deposit 1,069.69 1,069.69 - N
Group Loans 5,945.54 5,934.73 10.81 B
Total financial assets

at amortised cost 7,598.57 7,537.24 61.33 50.52
Loan commitments - - - R
Total 7,598.57 7,537.24 61.32 50.52
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54 Market risk

Market risk is the risk which can affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments due to adverse movements in market prices of instrument due
to interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads. The objective of the Company's market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters. The Company separates its exposure to market risks between trading and non-trading portfolios.

Market the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates
and equity prices. Company classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios and manages each of those portfolios separately.

(1} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The Company is not exposed to

interest rate risk as it does not trade in Interest Rate Derivatives and does not have any loans having variable interest rates.

(1) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arise majorly on account of Trade
Receivables.
2023-24
Currency Increase in exchange rate  Effect on profit before Decrease in exchange Effect on profit
(%) tax Effect on Equity rate (%) before tax Effect on Equity
US Dollar 5% 0.10 0.10 5% (0.10) (0.10)
2022-23
Currency Increase in exchange rate  Effect on profit before Decrease in exchange Effect on profit
(%) tax Effect on Equity rate (%) before tax Effect on Equity
US Dollar 5% 0.17 0.17 5% (0.17) {0.17)

{ill) Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of individual investment in equity share

prices.
There is no Equity price risk in F.Y. 2023-24 and F.Y. 2022-23.

(v} Other price risk
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of market prices other than equity and

index prices.
2023-24
impact on Effect on profit before Effect on profit
Increase in price (%) tax Effect on Equity Decrease in price (%) before tax Effect on Equity
Debt Securities 5% 63.37 63.37 5% {63.37) (63.37)
2022-23
Impact on Effect on profit before Effect on profit
Increase in price (%) tax Effect on Equity Decrease in price {%) before tax Effect on Equity

Debt Securities 5% 8.90 8.90 5% (8.90) (8.90}
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a)

b}

55.1,

Fair Value Measurement
Valuation Principles :

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation

techniques.
Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurement is categorised.

Particulars 31-Mar-24

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments
Equity instruments - - 0.10 0.10
Debt Securities 15.70 36.56 - 52.26
Nifty linked debentures - - 1,211.97 1,211.97
Total investments measured at fair value 1570 36.56 1,212.07 1,26333
Land and Building 1,715.11 1,715.11
Total financlal assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 15.70 36.56 2,927.18 2975.2%
Particulars 31-Mar-23

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments
Equity instruments - - 0.10 0.10
Debt Securities 17.02 37.22 - 54.24
Nifty linked debentures - - 123.76 123.76
India Credit Investment Fund I - - 2,524.99 2,524,99
India Credit Investment Fund | - - 1,055.49 1,055.49
Total Investments measured at falr value 17.02 37.22 3,704.34 375838
tand and Bullding 2,024.51 2,024 51
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 17.02 37.22 5,728.85 5,783.09

Fair valuation techniques :

Debt securitles
Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed or floating rate securities, however nifty linked debentures have embedded derivative characteristics.

Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yietds prevailing in the market as at the reporting date. Company has
used quoted price of national stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt securities are not actively traded, Company has used
CRISIL Corporate Bond Valuer model for measuring fair value.

Equity Instruments

The majority of equity instruments are actively traded on recognised stock exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular basis. Such
instruments are classified as Level 1. Units held in funds are measured based on fund net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemption and/or other
restrictions. Such NAV Such instruments are generally Level 3. Equity instruments in non-listed entities are initially measured at transaction price and re-
measured at each reporting date at valuation provided by external valuer at instrument level. Such unlisted equity securities are classified at Level 3

Units of Alternative Investment Funds and Mutual Fund.
Units held in Alternative Investment funds are measured based on fund net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions,

Such instruments are classified at Level 3,

Open-ended funds that are redeemable at any time, and that report a daily net asset value (NAV) and for which sufficient subscriptions and redemptions

Derivatives

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counter-parties, primarily banks with investment grade credit ratings, Derivatives
valued using valuation techniques with market observable Inputs are mainly interest rate swaps, exchange traded futures and options contracts. The most
frequently applied valuation techniques include quoted price for exchange traded derivatives and Black Scholes models (for option valuation).

Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative Is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows

of the combined Instrument vary in a way simitar to a stand-alone derivative.
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Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost and analysing them by the level in the fair
value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised. The information given below is with respect to financial assets and
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost for which the fair value is different than the carrying amount. Carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade and other payables as on 31 March 2024 approximate the fair value because of their short-term
nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of bank deposits, other financials assets and other financial liabilities is not

significant in each of the years presented.

31 March 2024

Total Carrying
Particulars Amount Total fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Loans 10,231.01 10,231.01 - - 10,231.01
Total 10,231.01 10,231.01 - - 10,231.01
Financial liabilities
Debt securities 16,757.90 16,757.90 - 16,757.90
Borrowing {other than debt
securities) 2,475.48 2,475.48 - - 2,475.48
Subordinated liabilities 20.00 20.00 20.00 N
Total 19,253.38 19,253.38 - 20.00 19,233.38

31 March 2023

Total Carrying
Particulars Amount Total fair value Levell Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Loans 297.66 297.66 - 297.66
Investments at amortised cost - - - - B
Total 297.66 297.66 - - 297.66
Financial liabilities
Debt securities 14,354.71 14,354.71 14,354.71
Borrowing (other than debt
securities) 7,297.30 7,297.30 - 7,297.30
Subordinated liabilities 447.10 447.10 447.10 N
Total 22,099.11 22,099.11 - 447.10 21,652.01
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

56

Investments

As at 31 March 2024

At fair value

At cost
(subsidiaries,

Through P&L associates, and Total
Particulars (g) Joint ventures) (3)= (142)
(2)

(i) Debt securities 1,264.23 1,264.23
(ii) Equity instruments 0.10 4,804.23 4,804.33
(iii) Subsidiaries

a) Equity - 4,804.23 4,804.23

b) Debt securities 1,248.53 - 1,248.53

c) Preference shares - - -
(iv) Others - Investment in Partnership Firm- Group - 3.12 3.12
(v) Others - Investment in Funds - - -
(vi) Investment in compulsory convertible instruments - Group - 5,750.00 5,750.00
TOTAL - Gross (A) 1,264.33 10,557.35 11,821.68
(i} Investment outside India -
(i) Investment in India 1,264.33 10,557.35 11,821.68
Total (B) 1,264.33 10,557.35 11,821.68
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) - 1,539.06 1,539.06
Total Net (A-C) 1,264.33 9,018.29 10,282.62
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 1,264.33
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 1,264.33
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 9,018.29
As at 31 March 2023

At cost
At fair value (subsidiaries, Total
Particulars Through P&L associates, and (3)=(1+2)
(1) joint ventures)

(i) Debt securities 178.00 - 178.00
(ii) Equity instruments 0.10 3,935.31 3,935.41
{iii) Subsidiaries .

a) Equity - 3,935.31 3,935.31

b) Debt securities 160.57 - 160.57

¢) Preference shares - 858.92 858.92
(iv) Others - Investment in Partnership Firm - Group - 3.16 3.16
(v) Others - Investment in Funds 3,667.28 - 3,667.28
{vi) Investment in compulsory convertible instruments and put options - 12,351.01 12,351.01
TOTAL - Gross (A) 3,845.38 16,289.48 20,134.86
{i) Investment outside India -
(i) investment in India 3,845.38 17,148.40 20,993.78
Total (B) 3,845.38 17,148.40 20,993.78
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) 86.81 1,538.96 1,625.77
Total Net (A-C) 3,758.57 15,609.44 19,368.01
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 3,758.57
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 3,758.57
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 15,609.44




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

57 Income tax

The components of income tax expense recognised in profit or loss for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are:

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Current tax - -
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years - N
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 17.66 215.46
Total tax expense 17.66 215.46
Total current tax - N
Total deferred tax 17.66 215.46

Reconciliation of the total tax expense

The tax expense shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax expense that would apply if all profits had been charged at India
corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the years
ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are follows:

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Profit / {Loss) before tax {1,008.71} (1,753.08)
Tax rate 34.94% 34.94%
Income tax expense calculated based on above tax rate (352.48) (612.60)
Write-down / reversal of write down of deferred tax assets on unused tax credits and unused

tax losses (net) 17.66 215.46
Effect of non-recognition of deferred tax asset on current-period losses 352.48 612.60
Tax expense recognised in profit or loss 17.66 215.46

The Government of India, on 20 September 2019, vide the Taxation Laws {Amendment) Ordinance 2019 (the Ordinance) , inserted a new
Section 115B8AA in the Income tax Act, 1961, which provides an option to the Company for paying Income tax at reduced rates. The Company is
continuing status quo and in due course will evaluate whether to transit to available option under the Ordinance.
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

59  Credit Quality

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the company’s internal credit rating
system and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Company’s
internal grading system are explained in Note 52 and policies on whether ECL allowances are calculated on an individual or
collective basis are set out in Note 52.

Loans 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
At amortised Total At amortised T
cost cost otal

Loans

Corporate Loans 17,798.06 17,798.06 7,834.91 7,834.91
Total Gross {A) 17,798.06 17,798.06 7,834.91 7,834.91
Less: Impairment loss allowance* 7,567.05 7,567.05 7,537.25 7,537.25
Total (Net) (A) 10,231.01 10,231,01 297.66 297.66

*Included in loans and advances an amount of Rs.7,880.30 million (Previous Year: Rs.5,945.54 million) receivable as at March 31,
2024 from Edelweiss Investments Adviser Limited (“EIAL"). EJAL had invested in and had exposure to real estate sector. Over the few
years, real estate sector is facing operational challenges and due to which the risk for certain counterparties has increased leading to
increased provisioning in the books of EIAL under the expected credit loss models. EIAL has performed detailed assessments of its
current and future business plans and on that basis has continued on the expected credit loss amounting to Rs. 5,934.73 million on
loans and advances. The Board of Directors of the company have reviewed and approved business plan, impairment loss and
assessment of recoverable amount as at March 31,2024,




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the daione financial for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

59  Credit Quality (Continued)

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company internal grading and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented
are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the company internal grading system are explained in Note 52 and policies on whether ECL allowances are calculated on an individual
or collective basis are set out in Note 52

Gross carrylng amount of loan assets allocated to Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3

Loans at amortised cost

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il Total Stage | Stage Hl Stage i Total
Performing
High grade 10,231.01 - - 10,231,01 236.34 . - 236.34
Standard grade - - - - - - -
Substandard grade -
Non-performing
impaired - - 7,567.05 7,567.05 - 7,598.57 7,598.57
Total 10,231.01 - 7,567.05 17,798.06 236.34 - 7,598.57 7,834.91

Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and allowances for expected credit loss

Particulars Non-credit impaired Credit Impaired Total
Stage | Stage il Stage Il
Gross carrying  Allowance for Gross carrying Allowance for  Gross carrying  Allowance for Gross carrying  Allowance for
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL
Balance at 1 April 2023 236.34 - - - 7,598.57 7.537.25 7,834.92 7,537.25
Transfers:

Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1} . -
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit impaired (Stage 3}

Net re-measurement of ECL arising from transfer

of stage

Net new and further lending/{repayments)

(including write-off) 9,995.70 1.04 - - (32.56) 28.76 9,963.14 29.80
Balance at 31 March 2024 10,232.05 1.04 - - 7,566.01 7,566.01 17,798.06 7.567.05
Particulars Non-credit impalred Credit impaired Total -
Stage | Stage I Stage NI
Gross carrying  Allowance for  Gross carrying  Allowance for  Gross carrying  Allowance for  Gross carrying  Aflowance for
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL’ amount ECL

Balance at 1 April 2022 15,634.89 5,934.44 1,317.58 196.74 2,473.84 2,359.63 19,426.31 8,490,851
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1)
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2} -
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit impaired {Stage 3)
Net re-measurement of ECL arising from transfer
of stage
Net new and further lending/(repayments)
{Including write-off) (15,398.55) {5,934,44) (1,317.58) {196.74) 5,124.73 5,177.62 (11,591.40) (953.56)

Balance at 31 March 2023 236.34 - - 7,598.57 7,537.25 7,834.91 7,537.25




Edeiweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

60 Other Disclosures:
a)  Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Below table shows changes in in liabilities arising from financing activities during the reporting period

Particulars Cash Finance costs during
1-Apr-23 flows the year 31-Mar-24
Debt securities 14,354.72 858.05 1,545.13 16,757.90
Borrowings other than debt securities 7,296.03 (5,389.49) 568.94 2,475.48
Subordinated liabilities 447.10 (427.10) 0.00 20.00
Total liabilities from financing activities 22,097.85 {4,958.54) 2,114.07 19,253.38
Particulars Cash Finance costs during
1-Apr-22 flows the year 31-Mar-23
Debt securities 17,039.51 (4,275.33) 1,590.54 14,354.72
Borrowings other than debt securities 15,813.04 (9,978.91) 1,461.90 7,296.03
Subordinated liabilities 2,234.51 (1,980.01) 192.60 447.10

Total liabilities from financing activities 35,087.06 (16,234.25) 3,245.04 22,097.85




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the standal financial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2024 {continued)

{Currency : indian rupees in millions)

60

b}

Other Disclosures {Continued)

Revenue from contract with customers

Below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers and its reconciliation to amounts reported in statement of profit and loss:

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars

Nature

Fees and commission
income

Real Estate Advisory Practice (REAP) and Others

Service transferred at a point in time

6.74
Service transferred over time Enterprise cost sharing 550.10
Total revenue from contract with customers 556.84

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

Nature

Fees and commission
income

Service transferred at a point in time Agri Shared Services (ASC), Real Estate Advisory Practice (REAP) and 6.88
Service transferred over time Enterprise cost sharing 776.46
Total revenue from contract with customers 783.34




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

61 Details of Ratio:

Particular 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 Variance Reason for Variance

Debt-equity Ratio (Refer note 1) 2.75 5.11

{46.17)% Decrease in Borrowings

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Refer note 2)

Profit before interest and

0.11 0.13  (15.46)% tax
Interest Service Coverage Ratio {Refer note 2) Profit before interest and
0.52 0.46 (13.92)% tax
Earnings Per Share - Basic (Face Value of Rs10/- each) (11.87) (27.23)  (56.41)% Reduction in loss
Earnings Per Share - Dilutive(Face Value of Rs10/- each) (11.87) (27.23) (56.41)% Reduction in loss
Total Debts/ Total Assets (Refer note 3) 0.71 0.82  (13.95)% Decrease in Total Assets

Notes:

1 Debt-equity Ratio = Total Borrowing (Non Current Borrowing + Current Borrowings } / Net worth

2 Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Profits before interest and tax / (Interest expenses + Principal Repayment in next six months)

Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Profits before interest and tax / Interest Expenses

3 Total debt to Total assets = Total Borrowing (Non Current Borrowing + Current Borrowings ) / Total assets.

4 Current ratio, Long Term Debts to Working capital, Bad Debts to Accounts Receivables Ratio, Current Liability Ratio, Debtors
turnover, Inventory turnover and Operating Margin (%), Net Profit Margin (%) are not applicable owing to the business model of the

company.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

62 Debt Securities - as at 31 March 2024

Maturities <1 years 1-3 years > 3 years Total
Rate of Interest

9.00 - 9.99% 7,470.00 - 6,116.64  13,586.64
10.00 - 10.99% - 2,750.00 2,750.00
12.00 - 12.99% 2,400.00 - 2,400.00
Accrued Interest and EIR - - - 516.74
Total 7,470.00 5,150.00 6,116.64 19,253.38

Debt Securities - as at 31 March 2023

Maturities <1 years 1-3 years > 3 years Total
Rate of Interest

9.00 - 9.99% 2,320.00 2,750.00 6,515.67  11,585.67
10.00 - 10.99% - 2,750.00 - 2,750.00
12.00 - 12.99% 5,231.60 - - 5,231.60
13.00-13.99% 2,000.00 - 2,000.00
14.00 - 14.99% 447.10 - - 447.10
Accrued Interest and EIR - - 84.74

Total 7,998.70 7,500.00 6,515.67 22,099.11
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63

65

66

67

69

70

Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company
There is no immovable property(other than properties where the Company is lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the company, where titie deeds

are not held in name of company.

Details of Benami Property heid
The Company daes not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property.

Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

of charges or satisf: of charges with Registrar of Companies (ROC})
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Relationship with Struck off Companies
Transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

For March 31, 2024

Name of struck of Company Nature of transactions with struck off Company Bal, ding f; hip with the
struck off Company

Nucsoft Limited Other Expense Nil Vendor

For March 31, 2023

Namae of struck of Company Nature of transactions with struck off Company Balance outstanding |Relationship with the
struck off Company

Anahit Organisation Develop C i

Pvt Ltd Professional Fees Nil Vendor

Shams Cable Network Office expense Nil Vendor

Kamal Enterprises iscell Nil Vendor

MR D Enterprises Repairs & Maintenance Nil Vendor

Undisclosed Income
The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

Detalls of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current financial year and any of the previous financial years.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, without specifying period of repayment of principal to companies.

For March 31, 2024

Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advance in  Percentage to the total Loans and
the nature of loan outstanding  Advances in the nature of loans

Promotors Nil

Directors Nit NA

KMPs Nil NA

Related Parties Nil NA

For March 31, 2023
Type of Borrower Amaount of loan or advance In  Percentage to the total Loans and

the nature of loan outstanding  Advancaes In the nature of loans

Promotors
Directors Nil NA
KMPs Nit NA

Related Parties Nil NA
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Notes to the
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

71 A) During the current year and previous year, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermed iaries) with the

ding that the diary sl

under

hall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{ii} provide any guarantee, security, or

(B) During the current year and previous year, the Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies),

the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Company shall, Other than as disclosed in note (1) below
{i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii} provide any guarantee, security, or

Note (1}

The Company has taken loans from its holding / subsidiary compaies and given loan to its

the iike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b

di

and the same is approved by Board Audit Committee of the Company. The Company confirm

Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1999) and Companies Act, 2013 and the such transactions are nof

tes/fellow Y

including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding

in the ordinary course of business, which are at Arm's length
that the below transactions are in accordance with refevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange
t in violation of the Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 (15 of 2003).

£Y 2023-24
Name of Lender Nature Date Rs. in Name of Company in Nature Date Rs. in milions Remarks
miltions which investment
done by the
Company
Ecap Equities Limited (Formerly known as Edel Loan Taken 15-Mar-24 1,600.00 ECAP Securities And Loan Given 15-Mar-24 1,600.00 1) ELL and Ecap are fellow
Land Limited){ELL} Investments  Limited subsidiaries of ERCSL.
(Ecap)
FY 2022-23
Name of Lender Nature Date Rs. in Name of Company In Nature Date Rs. In millions Remarks
milfions  which investment
done by the
Company
Ecap Equities Limited (Formerly known as Edel  Loan Taken Various 780.00 Edelweiss Rural & Purchase  of 21-Mar-23 780.00 1) ELLis associate of ERCSL,
tand Limited){ELL) Dates Corporate Services ~ NCD of Ecstasy
Limited Limited
320.10 [CHF N Investment in 27-Mar-23 320.10 1} ELL is associate of ERCSL
AIF Units and [CIF itis fellow subsidiary
of ERCSL.
220.00 Edelweiss Alternative Loan Given 28-Mar-23 220.00 1) Ecap Equities Limited is
Asset Advisors assaciate of ERCSL and EAAA
Limited (EAAA) is fellow subsidiary of ERCSL
Edelweiss Investment Loan Given Various Dates 1) ELL is associate of ERCSL
Advisors Limited and EIAL is subsidiary of
1,048.10 (EIAL) 1,048.10 ERCSL
1,190.00 Edel Finance Loan Given Various Dates 1,190.00 1)} ELLis associate of ERCSL,
Company Limited
(EFCL)
ECL Finance Limited (ECLF} Loan Taken Various 590.00 Edel Finance Loan Given Various Dates $90.00 1} ECL Finance is fellow
dates Company Limited substdiary of ERCSL and EfcCL
{EFCL) is holding company of £RCSL,
2) ERCSL has repaid its
borrowing from ECLF,. EFCL
has repaid its borrowing to
ERCSL.
386.70 Ecap Equities Limited 386.70 1) ECL Finance is fellow
{Formerly known as substdiary of ERCSL and Eiy,
Edel Land is an associate of ERCSL. 2}
Limited){ELL) ERCSL  has  repald s
borrowing from ECLE and E(L
has repaid its borrowing to
ERCSL.
£del Finance Company Limited (EFCL) Loan Taken Various 450.00 Edelcap Securities Loan Given Various Dates 450.00 1) EFCL is holding company
Dates timited (Edelcap) of ERCSL and  Edelcap s
subsidiary  of  ERCSL 2)
Edelcap  has  repaid ity
borrowing from ERCSL
200.00 Edelweiss Securities 200.00 1) EFCL is holding company
& investments Pyt of ERCSL and ESIPL is fellow
Lrd (ESIPLY subsidiary of ERCSL. £sipp
has  repaid  its borrowing
from ERCSL.
Edel Investments Limited (it} Loan Taken Various 750.00 Nuvama Wealth and  Loan Given Various Dates 750.00 1) €L is fellow subsidiaty of
Dates investment Limited ERCSEL and €BL is associate of
{£81) EFSL. 2} Borrowings from g,
has been repaid by encst.
EBL has repaid its borrowing
o ERCSL
250.00 €del Finance 25000 1) £ is lellow subsidiary of
Company timited SLand EFCL 15 holding
{315} company of ERCSE. 2)1ReSI1
has topald s borrowing
from €I,
Edolcap Securities Limited {Edelcap) Loan Taken 07:-Ap-22 25000 Nuvama Wealth and  Loan Given Various Dates 25000 1) Edeleap iy fellow

Investment Limited
(@]

subistdiary of FRCSL and £t
5assockate of  fEs. )
RBorrowings from Edolcap has
heen repatd by ERCSL gt
has repaid its borrowing 1o




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the

dal fi fal for the year ended 31 March 2024 {continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions}
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (EFSL} Loan Taken 28-Dec-22 957.09 ICif Il Investment in 28-Dec-22 957.09 1) EFSL is ultimate holding
AIF Units company of ERCSL and ICIF I
is fellow subsidiary of ERCSL
Loan Taken Various 2,120.00 Edel Finance Loan Given 24-)un-22 2,120.00 1) EFSL is ultimate holding
Dates Company Limited company of ERCSL and EFCL
(EFCL} is holding company of ERCSL.
2) EFCL  has repaid its
borrowing from ERCSL.
Loan Taken Various 1,750.00 Edelweiss Retail Loan Given 26-Dec-22 1,750.00 1) EFSL is uitimate holding
Dates Finance Limited company of ERCSL and ERFL
(ERFL) is fellow subsidiary of ERCSL.
ERFL  has repaid its
borrowing from ERCSL.
Loan Taken Various 2,148.00 Edelweiss Investment Loan Given 30-Dec-22 2,148.00 1) EFSL is uitimate holding
Dates Advisors Limited company of ERCSL and EIAL
(EIAL) is subsidiary of ERCSL.
Loan Taken Various 200.00 Ecap Equities Limited Loan Given Various Dates 200.00 1) EFSL is ultimate holding
Dates {Formerly known as company of ERCSL and ELL is
Edel Land associate of ERCSL. ELL has
Limited)(ELL) repaid its  borrowing to
ERCSL.
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (ERFL) Loan Taken 01-Jun-22 182.40 Edel Finance Loan Given 16-jun-22 182.40 1) ERFLs fellow subsidiary of
Company Limited ERCSL and EFCL is holding
(EFCL) company of ERCSL.ERCSL has
repaid its borrowing from
ERFL.2) EFCL has repaid its
borrowing from ERCSL.
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Loan Taken Various 4,490.00 Ecap Equities Limited Loan Given Various Dates 4,490.00 1) NHFL is subsidiary of
Edelwelss Houslng Finance Limited){ NHFL) Dates (Formerly known as ERCSL and ELL is associate of
Edel Land ERCSL. ERCSL has repald its
Limited {ELL) borrowing from NHFL. ElLL
has repaid its borrowing
from ERCSL
Loan Taken 01-4un-22 300.00 Edel Finance Loan Given 16-jun-22 300.00 1}NHFL is subsidiary of ERCSL
Company Limited and EFCL is holding company
(EFCL) of ERCSL. ERCSL has repald
its borrowing from NHFL.2)
EFCL has repald its
borrowling from ERCSL
Loan Taken 05-Jul-22 929.00 Edelweiss Investment Loan Given 25-)ul-22 1,039.00 1) NHFL is subsidlary of

Advisors Limited
(EIAL)

ERCSL and EIAL Is subsidiary
of ERCSL. 2) ERCSL has
repaid its borrowing from
NHEL

Note {2)

Based on the legal opinion obtained by the ultimate Holding Company (EFSL), the transactions undertaken by NBFC-CIC of borrowIng/lending/investment to and from its
holding/subsidlary/affiliate/group entity(les) or borrowing from outside the Group for onward lending/investments for carrying on their respective business in ordinary course will not attract
reporting under Rule 11{e} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {the 'Rules'). Accordingly, transactions undertaken by the Company with Edel Finance Company Limited (NBFC CIC)

is not disclosed under the Rules,

7

There have been no events or transactlons which have occurred since the date of balance sheet or pending that would have material effect on the financlal statement and requires adjusting to
accounting estimates and disclosures Included in financial statements at that date or for the perlod then ended, other than those reflected or fully disclosed In the financial statements,

No events have occurred that are of such significance in relation to the company's affalrs to require mention In a note to the financlal statements in order to make them not misteading
regarding the financial position, results of operations, or cash flow or changes in equity of the company.

73 The Company is In compltance with number of layers of companies, as prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rutes,

2017,

74 The Company has already responded to authoritles on show cause notice In respect of import of pulses in earlier years, There are no further updates subsequent to Company's responses. Based
on the management assessments. there Is no imoact on the financlal statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024,

75 Allamounts disclosed [0 the financlal statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requiraments of Schedule Il unless otherwise stated.
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76  Previous year's numbers have been regrouped and rearranged whenever necessary to confirm to current year presentation/classification.
77 These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 08 May 2024.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Nangia & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chagtered Accountants Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

irm Registration Number: 00831C/ N500069 "_\
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Company Secretary
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